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Financial Summary
B2

(In RMB'000 unless otherwise stated) (S BHRIN » UAAREFITIIR)
Year ended 31 December
Profitability data and ratios B SERILE BET-_A=1+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Revenue WA 634,686 462,191
Timber houses and their related parts NE REABRA A KB
and structures 496,211 302,761
Leisure household products REREER
Outdoor and indoor furniture ERIMRIEER 13,075 17,467
Recreational products WrEVREE 14,697 9,123
Landscape garden products BESMEE D 13,474 64,556
Pet-home designs EYEESR 11,441 19,686
Trading of timber KBS 71,228 28,528
Renewable energy products BERRE®D 14,560 20,070
Gross profit EF 68,525 32,173
Gross profit margin FEFI = 10.8% 7.0%
Net loss FEE (184,931) (40,556)
Net profit margin v ) 2 -29.1% -8.8%
Loss per share (RMB) BRREE(ARE) (0.0599) (0.0134)
At At
31 December 31 December
Financial position data and ratios MK RISERILSE 2018 2017
R-Z—)\F NZZT—tF
+=ZA=+—B +ZA=+—H
Non-current assets FREBEE 549,520 772,335
Current assets TEVEE 618,361 721,148
Current liabilities mEAE 197,862 324,469
Non-current liabilities EREEE 19,471 38,424
Equity attributable to equity shareholders #z#H AEEE KR 950,548 1,130,590
Current ratio (Note 1) RENEL X (K7t 1) 3.1:1 2.2:1
Quick ratio (Note 2) RENEL K (ff712) 1.4:1 1.2:1
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) (days) FEEEXE(ME3)(R) 218 276
Trade receivables turnover days 2 5 WK IE B R 8
(Note 4) (days) (Krat4)(R) 65 84
Turnover days on prepayment for AR TR SR B R B (A7 5T 5) (R)
raw materials (Note 5) (days) 43 70
Total borrowings to total assets (Note ¢) (& E4asal B EE L& (F13t6) 9.3% 16.7%
Net borrowings to total equity (Note 7) BEFREEEERL R (M 7) 5.5% 5.1%
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Financial Summary continueo)
B T L

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (x5 BHTIN + UAAREFITIR)

Notes:

Current ratio is the ratio of current assets to current liabilities.

Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets (excluding inventories) by
current liabilities.

Inventory turnover days is calculated by dividing average inventories by cost of
inventories and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days.

Trade receivables turnover days is calculated by dividing average trade
receivables (excluding VAT) by turnover and multiplying the resulting value by
365 days.

Turnover days on prepayment for raw materials is calculated by dividing average
prepayment for raw materials by cost of inventories (excluding staff costs,
depreciation and research and development costs) and multiplying the resulting
value by 365 days.

Total borrowings to total assets is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans
and interest-bearing borrowings by total assets.

Net borrowings to total equity is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans and
interest-bearing borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits by total equity.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018
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Financial Summary continues)

B T 2

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (fr5 BTN+ AAREFITIR)

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is depicted below:

RmBMEIIRIT

AEESIAEMBRFEZREREE  BER

RESULTS S
For the year ended 31 December
8F+-_A=+—HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
=B-N\§ —T—tf —T% —T-hfF —T-NF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Revenue A 634,686 462,191 442,328 639,999 701,231
Cost of sales SHEMA (566,161) (430,018) (394,506) (517,542) (522,818)
Gross profit EF| 68,525 32,173 47,822 122,457 178,413
Other revenue Hplg A 9,480 15,777 29,308 32,908 17,888
Other net (loss)/gain Hib(&B) MzsFE  (180,023) (14,884) (21,877) (7,030) 2,172
Selling and distribution expenses 4% kA 5% (22,329) (17,600) (20,219) (22,671) (21,714)
Administrative expenses THRAX (49,194) (47,249) (46,546) (55,554) (56,279)
Expected credit loss on TREENTEH
financial assets EEEE (642) - - - -
(Loss)/profit from operations g (E1R),/ 5T (174,183) (31,783) (11,512) 70,110 120,480
Share of profits/(losses) of HEEE N REF]
associates (E518) 282 (204) (129) 20 -
Finance costs AR (8,895) (6,216) (9,037) (16,627) (11,326)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BER(EB),/ % H (182,796) (38,203) (20,678) 53,503 109,154
Income tax expenses Frisfif (2,135) (2,353) (1,617) (9,701) (18,344)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)wF (184,931) (40,556) (22,295) 43,802 90,810
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(BEB)/BF
— Basic and diluted —ERREE
(RMB) (AR (0.06) 0.01) (0.01) 0.03 0.08
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BERER
As at 31 December
®R+=B=+-—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
-\ —T+F —T-RE —T-HF —T-NmF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARETRT
Total Assets BEBT 1,167,881 1,493,483 1,623,282 1,624,667 1,281,732
Total Liabilities BEEsE 217,333 362,893 494,565 489,157 484,390
Total Equity RS EER 950,548 1,130,590 1,128,717 1,135,510 797,342

FREMERERAT | 7
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Chairlady’s Statement
FEHmE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“the Board”) of directors (“the Directors”) of
the Company, | hereby announce the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“the
Year").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Year, the revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB635 million, representing a 37.3% increase as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2017. Although the
Group recorded an increase in revenue, the loss attributable to
shareholders during the Year increased to RMB185 million. The
Board considered that the increase was mainly attributable to (i) a
weakened profitability of the export of the Group’s wooden products
due to the imposition of additional tariffs by the US on Chinese
goods; and (i) the recognition by the Group of asset impairment due
to the negative impact from the US-China trade dispute on the future
profitability of the Group. The Board recommended not to declare
any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During 2018, the Group experienced unprecedented challenges. On
18 September 2018, the Office of the United States Trade
Representative announced that effective from 24 September 2018, a
10% tariff shall be imposed on China's 5,745 types of imported goods
with total value of US$200 billion. The Group’s wooden products
exported to the United States are among those imported goods
being affected. As the volume of the Group’s export business to the
United States accounts for a large proportion of the Group's total
business volume, the additional tariffs imposed by the United States
government has damaged the profit margin of the Group’s products
exported to the United States, which has directly impacted the
performance of the Group in the second half of the year. In the PRC
market, according to the 2018 economic data released by the
National Bureau of Statistics of China, the GDP grew by 6.6% as
compared with last year. Although the target of 6.5% set by the PRC
government at the beginning of the year was achieved, this GDP
growth rate was the lowest in China's 28-year economic
performance. By quarter, the economic growth rate continued to
decrease with a year-on-year growth rate of 6.8% for the first
quarter, 6.7% for the second quarter, 6.5% for the third quarter, and

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Cha | l’|ady'S Statement (continued

6.4% for the fourth quarter, respectively. The statistics indicated that
economic growth is slowing down in China. On the other hand, as a
result of growth in revenue of timber houses and their related parts
and structures of the Group in the Australasia market due to
increasing market acceptance, the negative impact from the North
American and European markets was alleviated.

PROSPECTS

Following the US-China trade talk at the end of February 2019,
market conditions appeared to be improved, as the US side agreed
to delay the increase of tariffs on the export of Chinese goods to the
US to 25% and maintain at 10%. However, the Group expects that its
US business segment in 2019 continues to face great uncertainties.
Given the growing impact caused by the US-China trade war on
China’s economy, the manufacturing sector and the export sector
both suffer a blow. Coupled with a weakened performance of the
stock market and the property market, impaired individual consumer
confidence, which will significantly increase the downward pressure
on China’s economy. The Brexit is bringing the uncertainty to the
European economy, in addition, the number of constructions in the
Australian property market also declines significantly. Given these
factors, the Group’s profitability is inevitably affected, putting
tremendous pressure on the returns on assets and inventories. It is
expected that the Group will continue to face challenges in its
business environment in 2019. The Group will closely monitor the
US-China trade dispute and the development of other overseas
markets such as Australia, assess the impact on the Group, and
identify necessary and decisive measures to minimize the negative
impact on the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners. |
would also like to thank our employees for your efforts and
contributions to the Group over the Year.

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

ERLIER68%  —FEIER6T7%  —FEIER
6.5% * TOEEIBK 6.4% » BUEF R B4 E R
WRAE o BRI - AR AREBRRAFIFE R TS
B R E e HABRE BD 1 R R S BUS TS5
o B I AN SR [ R K ) 6 20 T S B0 IR 8515 8
OB TIEEMRBONTISRENZE -

RE
BEC_T—NF_ARTEMHBRTZEHHAH
RIVBEMEFE XN TRABEESTREEOE
EB 2 EmBTIR R E25% - WHERFE10%KF
AEEBEH T N FOXBEEBIEE L ER
THEEM - BEEPXEZBEPRLENTEZR
FFHR - FUEERBOEHZITE - MERED
SREHMETSRYE  BABREBEELRIF
& RAIEMFBELETTTES BB AR
MBS R TARAE R - I DRMNEHET IS
FEREENCDEBRETT ERAXBEER
FEASENFBE  WEEQ®R EFSHIE
RERET - R —E-NFAREENKERE
DS HEE - AREEEERPEME M
BE 5 A KRN F MBS ISR ER - &F
EHARENTE  UKSHROERREERE
NEEREHAEENERZE -

EE )

AABHRREEFGROBH —BURIFRIE
EARENE R RREBBH - REFIREH
B NUETRREFESREENENFELEH -

E RS
E

HREMERBRDA | 9

S



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R E DT

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review

During the Year, the performance of our business segments are as

E3E]
53 &b 1= A
RAERE - BIRQEN B2 RBMT -

follows:
Segment revenue % to total segment
derived from external revenue derived from  Reportable segment
customers Change external customers (loss)/profit (Note 1)
HFEMRERZ DES V0
FEMPERZABRA - ] #oBkAESL (&H)/&%(Ht1)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\f —T—tF ZE-\f —T+tF IZB-\f —ZTtF
RMB'000 RMB'000 % % %  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTRT ARETRT BAL AL g5t AR¥WFRT ARETET
Manufacturing and sales EERBEALS
of wooden products 618,872 436,841 41.7% 97.5% 945%  (186,107) (44,515)
Retail business TEER 1,254 5,280 -76.3% 0.2% 1.2% (1,622) (1,946)
Manufacturing and sales of EEREE
renewable energy products BAEERER 14,560 20,070 -27.5% 2.3% 4.3% 2,512 3,541
634,686 462,191 100.0% 100.0%  (185,217) (42,920)

The Group’s core business segments are comprised of production
and sales of wooden products; retail business; and manufacturing
and sales of renewable energy products. During the Year, revenue
from these three business segments amounted to approximately
RMB618.9 million, RMB1.3 million and RMB14.6 million (2017:
approximately RMB436.8 million, RMB5.3 million and RMB20.1
million), accounting for 97.5%, 0.2% and 2.3% of the total revenue

(2017: 94.5%, 1.2% and 4.3%).

Note 1.
government subsidies.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

Reportable segment (loss)/profit has excluded the after tax effect of
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Management Discussion and Analysis continea

B e am e AT e

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains to be the
Group's largest business segment, contributing 97.5% of the Group’s
revenue. The revenue derived from such business increased by
41.7%. The overall increase in revenue from this segment is mainly
attributable to the growing market acceptance of the Group's timber
houses and their related parts and structures products in Australasia.

The US-China trade dispute started in the second half of 2018. On 18
September 2018, the Office of the United States Trade
Representative announced that effective from 24 September 2018, a
10% tariff shall be imposed on China’s 5,745 types of imported goods
with total value of US$200 billion. The Group’s wooden products
exported to the United States are among those imported goods
being affected. As the volume of the Group’s export business to the
United States accounts for a large proportion of the Group's total
business volume, the additional tariffs imposed by the United States
government has damaged the profit margin of the Group’s products
exported to the United States, which has directly impacted the
performance of the Group in the second half of the Year. As a result,
the gross profit margin of this segment decreased. In consideration
that the US-China trade friction will continue to adversely affect the
future profitability of the Group, the Group is required to recognise
asset impairment of its production facilities and lease prepayments.
Therefore, manufacturing and sales of wooden products of the
Group recorded losses, and such losses grew to approximately
RMB186.1 million from approximately RMB44.5 million in 2017.

Since 2010, the Group'’s self-owned brand retail business engaged in
the retail sales of leisure household products in the PRC. However,
due to the weak domestic demand for leisure household products,
the Group’s retail business continued to record losses. The Group
aims to improve the operation by improving its cost controls, and will
realign its business direction whenever appropriate.

The Group's renewable energy business involves the recycling of
leftover sawdust from the production of our wooden products into
biomass pellet fuel. During the Year, the Group’s renewable energy
business recorded a decrease of 27.5% in revenue to approximately
RMB14.6 million, and a decrease of 29.1% in profit to approximately
RMB2.5 million (2017: revenue of RMB20.1 million and profit of
RMB3.5 million), which is mainly due to the fierce domestic
competition in the renewable energy market.
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INABEES R ASE L O EEAE RN FE
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Management Discussion and Analysis ontinea

EREHRESN

MARKET REVIEW

During the Year, the distribution of revenue from our global markets
are as follows:

™ 35 [0 R

RAEE - BFIREZERTIHZWADMAOT

Revenue % to total revenue
KA HHBEAFS L
2018 2017 Change 2018 2017
—E—\F T—+F b= BN\ —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000 % % %
AR®TFET ARKTT Ebaisd Bok Bt
The PRC =2 146,119 107,332 36.1% 23% 23%
North America JEZEM 260,111 236,279 10.1% 41% 51%
Europe M 30,349 18,303 65.8% 5% 4%
Asia Pacific N
(Exclusive of the PRC) (“EFEFRED) 10,162 16,945 -40.0% 2% 4%
Australasia SR A FEES 187,945 83,332 125.5% 29% 18%
634,686 462,191 37.3% 100% 100%
The North American market represents the largest income stream of ~ JEZEMISEARE B A HEAARIR - EREE LR
the Group, accounting for 41% of the total revenue of the Group AW M%(ZF—LF : 51%) « KFE - b=

(2017:51%). During the Year, revenue from the North American
market grew by 10.1% to RMB260.1 million (2017: RMB236.3 million).
Despite growth in revenue, the US-China trade dispute as previously
mentioned will continue to bring negative impact to the profitability
of the Group in the future. Therefore, the Group will continue to
enhance its product competitiveness and closely monitor the market
conditions.

In 2018, the GDP of the PRC recorded a growth rate of 6.6% as
compared to that of last year, representing the lowest growth rate in
China’s 28-year economic performance. By quarter, the economic
growth rate continued to decrease with a year-on-year growth rate of
6.8% for the first quarter, 6.7% for the second quarter, 6.5% for the
third quarter, and 6.4% for the fourth quarter, respectively. The
statistics indicated that economic growth is slowing down in the PRC.
Despite slowing economic growth, the Group’s revenue from the PRC
market increased by 36.1% to RMB146.1 million (2017: RMB107.3
million), and accounted for 23% of the total revenue (2017:23%), which
is the third largest revenue source of the Group. The increase was
contributed by the growth in turnover from trading of timber.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis ontinea

B A RS AT

The Australasia market has become the second largest income
stream of the Group, accounting for 29% (2017:18%) of the Group's
total revenue. Income from the Australasia market recorded a strong
growth by 125.5% to RMB187.9 million (2017: RMB83.3 million) due to
the successful launch of timber houses and their related parts and
structure products in the region. However, the number of buildings
in the Australian property market reached its peak by the second
half of 2018 with a noticeable downward trend. It is expected that
there will be difficulty in sustaining strong growth in 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit margin by product
category

Revenue
KA
2018 2017
ZE-N\E ZT+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR ARETRT

BARARTISEERAREEE Z KRR
EAREEBUWAZ29%(—F—LF :18%) °
BTN R R HE R B J ELAR R 014 i 14 - 2R
BB A FI P8 I T 5 M U SRS 58 SIIE K 125.5% =
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BERZZE-—N\FNHFRIE WEHBREET
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WARENE (RERDEEID)

% to total revenue Gross margin
ERBRAESRL Efl®
Change 2018 2017 2018 2017
28 ZB-N\f —Z—+F ZB-N\F —T—+tf
% % % % %

BAk Zh:1:4 Bt BAl Bk

Timber houses and their AE R AR

related parts and structures LEH 496,211 302,761 63.9% 78.2% 65.4% 11.7% 4.0%
Leisure household products — hEGFEESR

Outdoor and indoor fumiture  ZRIMFEES 13,075 17,467 -25.1% 2.1% 3.8% 16.2% 11.0%

Recreational products FHEER 14,697 9,123 61.1% 2.3% 2.0% 4.3% 20.5%

Landscape garden products EEBER 13,474 64,556 -79.1% 2.1% 14.0% 16.9% 11.7%

Pet-home designs RENEEM 11,441 19,686 -41.9% 1.8% 4.3% 10.2% 6.1%
Trading of timber ~ES 71,228 28,528 149.7% 11.2% 6.2% -0.1% 5.9%
Renewable energy products — BARRER 14,560 20,070 -27.5% 2.3% 4.3% 18.0% 29.1%
Total - Hy 634,686 462,191 37.3% 100.0% 100.0% 10.8% 7.0%

Sales of timber houses and their related parts and structures
remained the largest income stream of the Group in 2018. Revenue
from such category increased by 63.9% to RMB496.2 million (2017:
RMB302.8 million), representing 78.2% of total sales for the Year
(2017: 65.4%), mainly due to the strong growth in the Australasia
market.

RZT—N\F KEREBEBEREFHEED
REAEBMHEARWARIR - A B8 BI WA i
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Overall revenue from the leisure household products decreased by
52.5% to RMB52.7 million (2017: RMB110.8 million), as a result of the
significant decrease in revenue from landscape garden products by
79.1% to RMB13.5 million (2017: RMB64.6 million). Such decrease is
mainly due to the declining demand for landscape garden products
of the Group in the North American market.

Due to the US-China trade dispute, market uncertainties continued
to grow. As a result, the Group began to lower its inventory level of
raw materials from the fourth quarter of 2018. As compared with last
year, turnover from trading of timber increased by 149.7% to
RMB71.2 million (2017: RMB28.5 million).

During the Year, the Group’s renewable energy business recorded a
decrease by 27.5% to approximately RMB14.6 million (2017: RMB20.1
million), mainly attributable to the fierce domestic competition in the
renewable energy market.

Other revenue

During the Year, our other revenue decreased to RMB9.5 million
(2017: RMB15.8 million) mainly due to the decrease in government
subsidies amounting to RMB7.0 million (2017: RMB11.4 million).

Other net loss

The Group recorded other net loss of RMB180.0 million for the Year
(2017: RMB14.9 million). Such loss were mainly due to the
impairment loss recognised in respect of our production facilities,
lease prepayments and inventories amounted to approximately
RMB139.3 million, RMB23.3 million and RMB7.9 million respectively.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses incurred during the Year were
RMB22.3 million (2017: RMB17.6 million) which was a result of the
increase in turnover and number of shipments during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses incurred during the Year amounted to
RMB49.2 million (2017: RMB47.2 million), which was similar to 2017.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Finance costs

Our finance costs increased to RMB8.9 million (2017: RMB6.2 million)
as there were no interest expenses capitalised during the Year.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense amounted to RMB2.1 million (2017: RMB2.4
million), primarily due to the deferred tax charged to profit or loss in
respect of the deferred income offset against impairment of
property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments during the
Year.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, loss for the Year is RMB184.9
million (2017: RMB40.6 million).

Dividend

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the Year (2017:
Nil).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from bank
borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet
funding needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had current assets of RMB618.4 million
(31 December 2017: RMB721.1 million), of which bank deposits and
cash (including pledged deposits) were RMB56.1 million (31
December 2017: RMB191.8 million).

The Group’s cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated
mostly in RMB. As at 31 December 2018, total available banking
facilities of the Group amounted to RMB237.2 million (31 December
2017: RMB396.1 million), banking facilities utilised as at 31 December
2018 were RMB91.2 million (31 December 2017: RMB233.2 million)
and these were mainly denominated in RMB and USD. All of the
Group’s banking facilities were subject to the fulfilment of certain
covenants, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions.
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As at 31 December 2018, the ratio of total borrowings to total assets
and net borrowings to total equity of the Group were 9.3% and 5.5%,
respectively (31 December 2017: 16.7% and 5.1% respectively), while
current ratio and quick ratio were 3.1:1 and 1.4:1 respectively (31
December 2017: 2.2:1 and 1.2:1 respectively).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged its plant and machinery,
lease prepayments and buildings held for own use and construction
in progress with net book value of RMB142.6 million (31 December
2017: RMB243.0 million) and deposits with banks of RMB18.1 million
(31 December 2017: RMB78.3 million) mainly for the purpose of
securing bank loans and financial derivative contracts issued by
banks to the Group.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group's total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB19.9 million
(2017: RMB95.7 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant capital commitments for the
Group. There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group
as at 31 December 2018.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL
ASSETS

During the Year, there were no significant investments, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries by the Company. The Group
currently has no plan to make any substantial investments in or
acquisitions of capital assets, but will continue to seek out potential
investment or acquisition opportunities according to the Group’s
development needs.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group's sales are mainly denominated in USD and RMB while
our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly denominated in
RMB. Therefore, the Group's profit margin would be affected if RMB
appreciates against USD as the Group may not be able to reflect the
appreciation in selling prices to overseas customers that were
determined in USD. In response to this, the Group manages
fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB against USD by entering
into foreign currency forward contracts mainly denominated in USD
and RMB with banks when sales contracts were entered with
overseas customers.

With the increasing level of our overseas purchases, the Group also
manages foreign exchange risk by matching the cash inflow from our
export sales denominated in USD with the cash outflow from our
import of timber denominated in USD.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had foreign currency forward
contracts with their fair values recognised as derivative financial
instruments (assets) of RMB2,736,000 (2017: RMBNIl) and derivative
financial instruments (liabilities) of RMB2,546,000 (2017:
RMB12,307,000). The changes in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. All of the foreign currency forward contracts are to be
settled within one year.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING, PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012. Net proceeds from the global offering
were approximately HK$144.3 million (after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses).

On 26 June 2014, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.80 per share by way of placing (the
“June 2014 Placement”). On 7 October 2014, the Company issued
165,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.93 per
share by way of placing (the “October 2014 Placement”). On 5 August
2015, the Company issued 272,600,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.55 per share by way of placing (the “August
2015 Subscription”). On 21 December 2015, the Company issued
857,945,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.20 per
share by way of Open Offer (the “December 2015 Open Offer”). On
10 February 2017, the Company issued 514,500,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.13 per share by way of subscription
(the “February 2017 Subscription”). The net proceeds from the issue
of new shares under the June 2014 Placement, October 2014
Placement, August 2015 Subscription, December 2015 Open Offer,
February 2017 Subscription after deducting related transaction costs,
were HK$155.0 million, HK$148.0 million, HK$149.7 million, HK$170.0
million, HK$66.7 million respectively.
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As at 31 December 2018, the aforesaid proceeds were utilised,
except for proceeds from placing in October 2014 and open offering
in December 2015. All the unutilised proceeds were deposited in

licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. A breakdown of the use  Fr
of net proceeds is set forth in the table below:

RZZ-NF+ZA=+—H A LLMER
BEOEPR H_E2-WF+ARER-ZT -0
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small to
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production  Establishing  Establishing  processing  promotion research
machinery new  own-brand  plants, and/ and other and  Repayment General
and  production self-operated orother  marketing development of bank working
equipment facilities store network  resources events activities  borrowing capital Total
Stk
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B NARER B0 NARER 73 NATER 13 100 %0 134
Unutiised amount as at 31 December 2018 RoE-NE+-f=1-8
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From December 2015 Open Offer FHZS-LE+ZR
Mg
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, we employed a total of 426 (2017: 510) full-
time employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group’s total expenses on the remuneration of
employees (including full-time and part-time employees) for the Year
were RMB35.5 million (2017: RMB32.6 million), representing 5.6%
(2017: 7.1%) of the revenue of the Group. The Group has been
consistently increasing production process automation,
strengthening the training of staff with an emphasis on high-
technigue processing with a mission on the continuous development
and enhancing of competitiveness. The Group offered highly
competitive salary packages, as well as discretionary bonuses and
contribution to social insurance to its employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees and directors according to the assessment of individual
performance. Since the adoption of the share option scheme on 15
June 2012 and up to 31 December 2018, no options have been
granted.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group has no material events after the reporting period.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board” and “Accountability and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company'’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the day-
to-day management of the Company is delegated to the chief
executive officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management
team.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu Zheyan. Save and except
this, there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relevant relationship) between Board members and
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.

The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to the information of the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2017 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:
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Meeting attendance/number of meetings

BRLEAY/BRRN
2017 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management
General Board  Committee  Committee  Committee ~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
- 2t 3 3] EiZRe FHZRe R%ZRe RREEZAG
Name of Directors EEER L3 EEN - - | | | el - | L ]
Executive Directors BoEs
Ms. Xie Qingmei (Chairlady) HEERL(TE) N 22 N/ANiER N/AMiER N/AMiER N/AER
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer)  REE %4 (77k#45) 01 22 N/ANiER N/ANER N/ANER N/ANER
Non-executive Director FUITER
Mr. Wu Dongping RATEE 01 22 N/ANER N/AMiER N/AER N/AER
Independent non-executive BikufEs
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE n 22 22 22 22 22
Prof. Jin Zhongwei SERUR 0N 22 22 22 22 22
Prof. Su Wengiang EY €2t 0N 22 22 22 22 22
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Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year
to approve the interim results of 2018 and annual results of 2017
whilst other matters of the Board were dealt with by written
resolutions or ad hoc Board meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms. Xie Qingmei, an executive director of the Company is the
chairlady of the Board.

Mr. Wu Zheyan is the chief executive officer of the Company. Further
details are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of this
report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors and four non-executive Directors. Three of the non-
executive Directors are independent. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are expected to participate in the
activities of the Board, particularly in the establishment of a selection
process to ensure a mix of competent directors and officers;
adoption of a system of internal checks and balances; scrutiny of the
Company's performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of Board authority is within
the powers conferred to the Board under its articles of association
(the “Articles”) and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and
number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board's deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND ROTATION
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2018, which may be terminated by not less than three months'
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each of the non-
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2018. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the Nomination
Committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

M

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company's
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognizes the need for
an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

M

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
aavisors,

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should obtain all information in relation to the proposed
Director to allow the Board to adequately assess the
independence of the Director in accordance with the factors
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.
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According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Ms. Xie
Qingmei, Mr. Lam Hin Chi and Prof. Jin Zhongwei shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management is
determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant
code provision. The Company had received from each of the
Directors the record of training the Directors received.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all
the Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked
with recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating
from such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk
assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services,

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems,

reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management'’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external

legal

or other independent professional advice and to secure the

attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Ccommittee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company to
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of
reference are available on request to any shareholder of the
Company and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management
has reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's internal control
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2018, with recommendation to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to
the Board that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, BDO Limited be re-appointed as the external
auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zzhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;
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(fy  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive,

(8 toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the
same to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will
carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and to enhance the quality of
performance of the Company. The Policy aims at achieving diversity
on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board’'s composition, a number of perspectives
which include race, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional
experience, knowledge, skills, length of service, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates will be taken into
consideration. The Company will also take into account factors
relating to its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The Board will
take opportunity to increase the proportion of female members over
time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference to
stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended
best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
Directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core markets,
with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group's
strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and report to the Board annually.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and

Prof.

Su Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Risk

Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

(@)

to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management
framework, the Group's risk appetite, its risk policies and
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used
for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including
market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic
and regulatory capital risks against the Group's risk
measurement methodologies and management actions to
monitor and control such exposures;

to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of
large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group's capability to identify and manage new risk
types;

to receive reports and recommendations from management
on the Group'’s attitude to and tolerance of risk, including
financial and non-financial risks;

to oversee the Group's processes and policies for determining
risk tolerance and review management’'s measurement and
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant
action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and

to review the Group's capability to identify and manage new
risk types, and the Group’s stress tests to ensure they are
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results.
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The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference
of the Risk Management Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 59 to 67.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Pursuant to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’'s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group’s factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event
there are any significant updates to be provided, the management
will update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion and
resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every
Director to make enquiries with the senior management about the
business operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback
in the event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site
updates session.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year letter from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the
scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of the independent auditor.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for audit services for the Year were approximately
RMB1,260,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for non-audit services for the Year were nil.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Since 6 July 2018, the Company has engaged Modern Assurance And
Business Services Limited, an external service provider, and Ms. Lee
Kin Yee has been appointed as the Company’s company secretary.
Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wu Zheyan, an
executive director of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the
memorandum of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group. The
systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or l0ss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for
dealing in the securities of the Company by the Directors in
accordance with Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Other employees
of the Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside
information and any information which may potentially constitute
inside information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to
the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules will be announced on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Tel: (852) 3904 1867
Postal Address: Office No. 5, 15/F, 6 Wilmer street,
Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company’s principal place of business
stated above.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group'’s business and its outlook are set out in
the sections of Chairlady’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are
provided in the section of Financial Summary. The Group has no
material important event affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of the Year.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ") for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of
Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimizing
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGS) expressed in terms of the
equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission. Non-
hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist of used
paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To minimize
the impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the Group
implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

o Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers,

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;
o Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;
o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

o Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.
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Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial
building uses more energy for lighting than for other electric
equipment. The Group is determined to reduce energy consumption
and implement conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon
footprint. Air conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce
unnecessary electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in
maintenance of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are
kept in good and proper condition to maximize efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.
As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied with all related laws and regulations in all material aspects
which may have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realizes that such operational dependency may pose a
threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their
performance.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. The
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research to
understand customer trends and needs and regular analyze on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or 10ss on page 68. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 72.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2017: Nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company'’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results, the general financial
condition of the Group, the Group’s current and future operations,
the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants, liquidity position and capital
requirement of the Group, surplus received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and all relevant applicable
laws, rules and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company does not have any pre-determined distribution ratio. The
Group’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as
a reference or basis to determine the amount of dividends that may
be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 7 of this
annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 27(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB665,168,000 (2017: RMB670,527,000), of which nil (2017: Nil) has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND DEBENTURES

Details of the Group's bank loans and debentures are set out in
notes 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 38.9% (2017: 43.4%) of the Group’s total revenue and
the Group’s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 10.4% (2017: 15.2%) of the Group's total revenue. The
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 58.8%
(2017: 55.3%) of the Group's total purchases, while the largest
supplier for the year accounted for approximately 16.9% (2017:
17.9%) of the Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES =]
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 426 (2017: 510) employees WR-Z—N\E+-A=+—H - KEFE*LHF426
in total. The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’'s %ZEE(ZZE—+% :5104) - T xARBS2
employees by their responsibilities: SHAREEE SR
2018

—E-N\%F
Management, Finance & Administration EIR B R ATIR 23
Sales & Marketing HE REH 12
Design, Research & Development AR A AR 75
Production HE 290
Quality Control onE BEE 26
Total @5t 426

Total staff costs for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB35,476,000 (2017: RMB32,607,000) and the details are set out in
note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Remuneration for
employees is based upon their qualification, experience, job nature,
performance and market condition.

The Group has established various welfare plans including the provision
of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
other relevant insurance for employees who are employed by the
Group pursuant to the rules and regulations of the PRC and the existing
policy requirements of the local government. The Group also maintains
the employee short-term health insurance and unforeseen injury
insurance. In addition, the Group provides staff quarters to its
employees.

Directors and qualified employees of the Company may be granted
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme (as defined
below).

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

ARE E o4 B TRCARR /5 AR 35,476,000 7T
(ZZ—+F: ARM32,607,0007T) » HE&HN
BRAEMBHRENZD) - BEEFHHERESH
BIE &8 TIEHE  RERMAMEE °

AREE BT BT MR A K5 IR IRITE
FRE  RASERANEERIZEENE -
BREEAEEZS  BERR  KERRIEMIAE
Rz - ARENEARESHRERR L TAER
M TERR © 1o AEBREEERMHETES -

RIBRE RS 8] GEE B T30 MR B s $/‘
RAEERGERESARERBREARBALR
Pt o



Directors’ Report coninea
EEgREe

DIRECTORS
Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Xie Qingmei
Mr. Wu Zheyan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board of

Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the

Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

=

RAFERN - EEFHWRENT :

WTES -
FEELL
RBEXE

FHITES
RETHE

B IEITESE -
BB

BR SR HIR

EFNHBENA TR EFS NN EERE] & -

EXRE

ARBBEREERBBREENESRBEEML
TRER e E PN B 5 7 2 B JEAE R SR 18150 B AT AE U

RERER

FREMERARAR | 45
—E\EEH



46

Directors’ Report coninea
EEgREe

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

Interest in shares

EERERTHRAERRKR®D - HE
R RESFHEERKXR

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8 #FFHAEQ A"
TBITRABEAARREREEE(EERES
K EAEAEBIZEXVER) ARG - HHEERMD REHHR
HERBESRAAEGRNEXVEIE7REZHH
ARG ARRT LB R ER KR (BIERE
5 R BB G160 B 6O 1 B (E SR A T
ﬁaﬂgﬁn&mﬂ HARIRE 5 MG 15 A5 352
1EZBRE AL P i & iR M ek AR 2 - T AR BRI 8% 10
el EMBITAZERHITES R HNIRETAE
MEARRB RO ERABWT

L

=\ 2

N
|

gh)

H

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR ELE
EEpa S EatyE K& E B (%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 449,647,412 14.56%
RBELE Long position (Note)
2HEBE SR R (M)
Beneficial owner/Long position 11,002,940 0.36%
EnBAN R
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 9,633,380 0.31%
AEFEL L EnBAN R

Note: Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas
Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation defined under the SFO
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:

Interest in shares

FERRRADTRG RBEKD
MERRAR

KB NET=A=+—0 FHAL(EH
FFRARABRITHAR) RAR AR S48
BR (S b B R IR R E DI B XV BB 2 R
EIDWHXATRBEORBLAR - RIRKE
%5 T H SR 6 19) 5 336 WZBRE A BK RPT AL B2 R
AR -

Ptn tE as

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR B
&1 e S gty K& E B (%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 1) 449,647,412 14.56%
EmBmEAN T (1)
Hong Kong Run De Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 2) 430,000,000 13.92%
Holdings Limited EmmEAN5E (HE2)
BEEBEERBRAR
REREABEIBRAT Interest in controlled corporation/ 430,000,000 13.92%
Long position (Note 2)
ZESEENER TR (I E2)
Mr. Lin Jian Interest in controlled corporation/ 430,000,000 13.92%
Long position (Note 2)
MEESEAE SEtlEEOERTE (ME2)
Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 3) 689,130,000 22.31%

Capital Holdings Limited
HRBETEE S RIER
BRAA

ERBBEAN TR (W23

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SEREH
&/ e 53 EREE K& E BS (%)
EIBFI B TR MBI Interest in controlled corporation/ 689,130,000 22.31%
BRAR] Long position (Note 3)
ZESEENER 1T (B E3)
Mr. Wang Xin Interest in controlled corporation/ 689,130,000 22.31%
Long position (Note 3)
ERTSEAE SEtlEEOER T E (I 3)
Note: Bzt -

1.

The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by & 52K & A b T B R A 7). The 98% issued
share capital of & & X & £ H{t T B R A &l is legally and beneficially
owned by Mr. Lin Jian, who is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by /8 718 T ¥ % IR AR A
A]. The 98% issued share capital of /87 B) T 2R HIER AR QA is
legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Xin, who is deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that
were required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 31 December 2018.

1. Green Seas Capital Limited ¥ & 2f 2 2T AR R =
SERERERER  REEFLEWRBM Green Seas
Capital Limited %58 8B 15 R #E A 4 o

2. BEREBEERAERARNEMBEBITRABEEAEA
MEIAERABEGERE=ESR  BEASABLEIA
RARIAI98% B EITIRABAMBILEREREwEE
RIS AR BN BB BEIERARARFAENRG S
WA

3. ERETERESRERERAFANZHEHITRAHL
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot, issue
and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps
as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect
to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue immediately following completion of the Global Offering (as
defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being
100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may be issued under
the options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Ccompany), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised, and the period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a
particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the shares on the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
100,000,000, representing 3.24% of the issued shares of the
Company.
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Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or and other body corporate.

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this report, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing shares,
here entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchase, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there is no transaction of the Group constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules (2017: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of which constitutes a
non-exempt connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management of
potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to
review any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
RMB192,000 (2017: RMB374,000) were made by the Group to various
charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.

* For identification purpose only
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AUDITOR

KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company on 16 November 2016
and BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditors of the Company
on 8 December 2016.

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of BDO Limited
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

3 4
LERER-F—AF+—A+ABEIFAA
BRI R B I EEERAMEHRARAF
ER-E—AFT-A\BBETARDAEY
B -

BRI EREEHMEHAARARKERE -
YHEERBRSRIER BEEBLEER
SETEEBMAERD R AR AR ZBEIERER
BRERERFBFAE LS -

RREZFE

B8 —E-NF=A=-+NH



Board of Directors and Senior Management

sEE2TNEREIEE

Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 39, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as a
Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University. Mr. WU is
a son of Mr. Wu Dongping.

Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and as the Chairlady on 23 May 2016. Ms.
Xie is primarily responsible for procurement matters in respect of the
Group. She has over 15 years of experience in corporate
management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group in 1999,
and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura
since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006. Ms. Xie
was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura as well
as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December 2000, and
has been running the procurement department of Zhangping Kimura
since 2003.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wu Dongping, aged 64, is a non-executive Director of the
Company since 15 June 2012 and is also the founder of our Group.
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chief engineer of Zhangping Kimura from
February 2006 to November 2010. Before the founding of the Group,
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chairman and the general manager of
Zhangping Kimura from December 1995 to January 2006 and the
director of Zhangping Textile Machinery Factory in Fujian (f&2%& & F
& &M IR) from December 1992 to November 1995, respectively.
Mr. Wu Dongping has been a member of the Technical Committee of
Structural Use of Wood under the National Committee of
Standardisation Technology of Timber (& BEIARMIZHE(L M E B & 45
BAARMOHEMZEE). He was elected as a member of The 4th
Preservation Committee of Wood Industry Institute, Chinese Society
of Wood Industry (FREIMBEAM TED SAMARMRERESED
fEZ &€) in April 2007 and was elected to the position of vice
president of the China Wood Preservation Industry Association (4
RIRFETEWE) in October 2011. Mr. Wu Dongping has over 20
years of experience in the fields of wood processing, preservation
and timber structures. Mr. Wu Dongping has participated in, on
behalf of our Group, the drafting of two PRC national and forestry
industry standards, and has been involved in the reviewing of PRC
national and forestry industry standards.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and associates member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree (Honours)
in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in finance,
audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of a number
of companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of
VSTECS Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management contines

Professor Jin Zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 81, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
40 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.

Professor Su Wengqiang (Professor Su), aged 63, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 30 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (85
EEB) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions in
timber industry, e.g., council member of Standing Committee of the
Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (BEeiT &t T2 SR ES) (in
December 2004), committee member of Wood Science Institute of
the Chinese Society of Forestry (FEIMEE AN RIEDE) (in April
2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation Committee of
China Timber and Wood Products Distribution Association Wood
Preservation Committee (FEIAM B RE RiRnBpE A M BEXEZE
YHERIEEEE ) (in December 2009), member of Board of Experts
Committee of Standardisation Committee of China Wood
Preservation Industry Association (PEIAMRE T EHEEREES)
(in October 2011), committee member of the Wood Preservation
Research Committee of the Wood Science Institute of the Chinese
Society of Forestry (FEIMESAMEE DS AMREREESZEE) (in
April 2007) and editor of editorial committee of Biomass Chemical
Engineering published by Institute of Chemical Industry of Forest
Products (FEIMERIZHEGMENCE T ERR (EDELET
#2) ) (in December 2010). Professor Su graduated from Northeast
Forestry University in July 1982, major in professional chemical
processing of forestry products (#RE{L 21 T Ti2H ), and obtained
a Doctorate Degree in December 2008.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management contines

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 53, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial management
affairs. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the
financial departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (TFa=
FEEEER AR and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory (iBE%& € IEFERR)
respectively. Mr. Chen has over 22 years of experience in corporate
financial management and possesses the qualifications of an
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (f&&4& RIMHEHEER) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lee Kin Yee (Ms. Lee), aged 35, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 6 July 2018. Ms. Lee is a
director of Modern Assurance And Business Services Limited and
she holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from
Lingnan University. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years of experience in
the field of accounting, auditing and company secretarial services.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& Az B RN R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY AND BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 68 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Assessment of impairment of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments

The carrying amount before impairment of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and lease prepayments as at 31 December
2018 amounted to RMB612,267,000 and RMB73,681,000 respectively.
The Group sustained a loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 of
RM22,415,000. Accordingly, management considered that there
were indicators of potential impairment of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments.

Management performed an impairment assessment when indicators
of impairment were identified. Management determined the
recoverable amounts based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. When performing an impairment
assessment, management used the fair value less costs of disposal
and compared the aggregate carrying values of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments, to determine the impairment
loss which should be recognised for the year, if any.

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and lease prepayments as a key audit matter
because the impairment assessments prepared by management are
complex and contain certain judgmental and subjective assumptions
which may be inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

The determination of fair value less costs of disposal requires the
exercise of significant management judgment in determining the
assumptions and parameters adopted. Refer to Notes 11 and 12 and
the accounting judgments and estimates set out in Note 3(v) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our response:

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment of property,
plant and equipment and lease prepayments included the following:

Understanding and evaluating management’s impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment and lease
prepayments;

Engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating management’'s impairment assessment
methodology, the key assumptions applied and calculations
contained with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

Assessing the independent valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise and considered their objectivity and
independence;

Comparing data in the discounted cash flow forecasts with the
relevant data, including forecast revenue, forecast cost of
sales, forecast other income and forecast other expenses, in
the profit forecasts prepared by management,

Comparing the compound annual growth rates and long term
growth rates adopted in the discounted cash flow forecasts
with historical performance;

Engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
assessing the discount rates applied in the discounted cash
flow forecasts with reference to the range adopted by other
companies in the same industry;

Comparing the revenue and operating costs included in the
prior year’s discounted cash flow forecasts with the current
year’s performance to assess the historical accuracy of
management’s forecasting process and considering the nature
of any significant differences; and

Performing sensitivity analysis of the key assumptions adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecasts and assessing the impact
of changes in the key assumptions on the conclusions reached
by management and whether there were any indicators of
management bias.
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Valuation of inventories

The Group held inventories amounting to RMB345,487,000 as at 31
December 2018. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if
those inventories are aged and damaged, if they have become
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined.

Management has carried out inventory review at the end of the
reporting period in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Management has concluded that there is write-down of
RMB7,931,000 in respect of the inventories for the year ended 31
December 2018. This conclusion was based on inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the determining the net realisable values involved significant
management judgment. (Refer to note 2(0) to the consolidated
financial statements and the Group’s critical accounting estimates
and assumptions in relation to the net realisable value of inventories
set out in note 3(j)

Our response:

— Assessing and evaluating the inventory ageing analysis of the
Group at year end, and subsequent usage and sales of
inventory after year end;

— Testing inventories to assess if they are stated at the lower of
cost or net realisable value by comparing the actual sales value
to the book value for a selected samples of finished goods and
raw material; and

— Assessing the sufficiency of the write down on inventories
made by management with reference to the inventory ageing
analysis and the subsequent transaction prices of the
inventories, on a sample basis.
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the gross amount of the Group’s trade
receivables totalled RMB126.5 million, against which a loss allowance
of RMB4.6 million was made. The carrying value of the Group’s trade
receivables represented approximately 10.8% of the total assets as
at 31 December 2018.

The Group’s loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL") based on management’s
estimated loss rates for each category of trade receivables. The
estimated loss rates take into account the ageing of the trade
receivables, overdue balances, information regarding the ability and
intent of the debtor to pay and historical data on default rates.

Management is required to apply judgment in assessing the loss
allowance for trade receivables under the ECL model. The ability of
the debtors to repay the Group depends on shared credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables groups and market conditions
which involves inherent uncertainty.

The collectability of the Group’s trade receivables and the valuation
of the loss allowance for trade receivables is a key audit matter due
to the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade receivables will be
recovered and significant management judgment exercised in
assessing the ECLs. (Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements and the Group’s critical accounting estimates and
assumptions in relation to the impairment of trade receivables set
out in note 34(ii).)
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Our response:

— Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the
calculation of the ECLs,

— Assessing the trade receivables ageing report by group based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due by
comparing the details of individual items with underlying
invoices on a sample basis;

— Obtaining an understanding of the basis of management’s
approach to measuring ECLs of trade receivable balances and
assessing the reasonableness of management'’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgments, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rate are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information; and

— Comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade receivable balances at 31
December 2018 with bank statements and relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Group’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise HERIEEFBEEAETESHNBIRET  B5E
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism — FEFEHE - RIS HELEREE - TZI8

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the e
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the e
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the e
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor's Report «continuea)

B ST A BT R o o

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate No. PO5804

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
rEEmK

For the yearended 31December 2018 HE_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥FIR)

2018 2017
—E—)\E§ —E—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
fizE AR®TT ARBF T
Revenue KA 4 634,686 462,191
Cost of sales Fic kI (566,161) (430,018)
Gross profit E£F 68,525 32,173
Other revenue E AU A 5(a) 9,480 15,777
Other net loss EfbEig s 5(b) (180,023) (14,884)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (22,329) (17,600)
Administrative expenses THFAX (49,194) (47,249)
Expected credit loss on financial assets & g1 & EMNTE S E KB (642) -
Loss from operations EBEER (174,183) (31,783)
Finance costs A& A A 6(a) (8,895) (6,216)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates DEEE R BNEF(E518) 282 (204)
Loss before taxation EEIRATES 18 6 (182,796) (38,203)
Income tax expense FrSRiAX 7(@a) (2,135) (2,353)
Loss for the year FERBE (184,931) (40,556)
Loss per share BREGE
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARANEE(ARE) 10 0.0599 (0.0134)

The notes on pages 75 to 224 form part of these consolidated H#75EEFE 224 B i ARG A MG HRER ) —
financial statements. & o

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEmMEMEE S

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE=_—ZT—/\F+_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREZ1R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F§ —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Loss for the year FEREHR (184,931) (40,556)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Htt2EIS (MNRKRE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HignptE# E 8
profit or l0ss: mAMIAE :
Exchange differences on translation of BREGINETE SRR EE
financial statements of foreign operations RIRE 5 ZE 58 7,731 (16,649)
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to BT eE B EnR
profit or l0ss: AR
Equity investment designated at fair value BEBEATFEFTAEM
through other comprehensive income: 2HKZHERE
— Changes in fair value — AFEZH (687) -
other comprehensive income for the year, FRXt2EIEE (HIKRNIE)
net of tax 7,044 (16,649)
Total comprehensive income for the year $£A22EKSME (177,887) (57,205)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R e B AR R

At 31 December 2018 R=ZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥FIR)

2018 2017
—E—N\FE —E—+tF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
KiaF AR¥®TT ARBTT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE R 11 462,194 631,169
Lease prepayments FHETEAK 12 44,183 73,650
Non-current prepayments for acquisitions  UgBE¥% - BE &R E 6
of property, plant and equipment JERNERTE IR 13 14,329 34,603
Interests in associates PR R BRI 14 24,716 24,434
Other financial assets HEMemEE 15 3,267 2,495
Deferred tax assets ELEFRIBE B 17 831 5,984
549,520 772,335
Current assets BN EE
Inventories FE 18 345,487 331,118
Current portion of lease prepayments THEFEN XA ENEREE D 12 1,017 1,664
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A FEUGRIA 19 215,773 196,604
Pledged deposits [REEEGLEE 20 18,084 78,261
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEY 21() 38,000 113,501
618,361 721,148
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAb e 3IE 22 57,300 64,153
Contract liabilities A48 E 23 23,133 -
Bank loans RITER 24 91,152 233,187
Current portion of deferred income EEW A FBNERED 5 25 - 1,163
Current taxation BIHEARS 18 26,277 25,966
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 197.862 = 324469
Net current assets B EERE 420,499 396,679

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position continea

o

BB

At 31 December 2018 A=_Z—N\F+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREZ1R)

2018 2017
ZE—)\EF T+t
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Kt et AR®TRT ARBT T
Total assets less current liabilities ##ZMRBA® = 970019 1,169,014
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Debentures &F 26 17,620 16,790
Non-current portion of deferred income  EIEU A IEBNEREE S 25 - 16,038
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 17 1,851 5,596
o 49470 0 38424
NET ASSETS HERE 950,548 1,130,590
EQUITY ga
Share capital [=WUN 27(b) 25,544 25,544
Reserves EE 925,004 1,105,046
TOTAL EQUITY gt b 950,548 1,130,590
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 R=-Z—AF=A -+t N BEEES I &N FE

March 2019.

Wu Zheyan
REE
Chief Executive Officer
TTIARE,

Flgs o

Xie Qingmei
wiEx
Chairlady
FE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR EER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE -
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA R E31R)

—NE+ZA=T—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FLRREREAR
Share Share Exchange Statutory Fair value Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits equity
2 kiniaE ER 0 EEER ATERR RaEH a5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note 27(b) (note 2000 (ote 7)) (note 27(c)i)
(o) (o) (WEem)  (WE)
Mlbayay — RSERR aw e omw s S ms A
Changes in equity for2017: —S-tE#ALE:
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - (40,556) (40,556)
Other comprehensive income A2 EbE - - (16,649) - - - (16,649)
Todlcomprehersieincome  $mbse® T . el T T woss 17205
Isse of shares upon subscription ~ Z2EEE kG 4557 54,521 - - - - 59,078
Appropriations to Statutory reserve AT - - - 1119 - (1119 -
At 31 December 2017 as RoB-t&
originally presented +ZA=+-R(E5) 25,544 677,305 6,746 54,784 - 366,21 1,130,590
Initial application of IFRS 9 BREREREBRS
(note 2(c)A) RS9 (W 2040) - - - - 1343 (3498) (2,155)
Restated at 1 January 2018  R-Z-/\&—f-8
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, AE B e e e e s 1B
Changes in equity for 2018: —3—)\E@aLE:
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (184.931) (184.931)
Other comprenensive income A2 AN - - 7731 - (687) - 7,044
o compefersieinone  eEGeR T N e SO L o LS L U
Appropriations to Statutory reserve & EE - - - 0 - (323) -
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\E
T-F=1-8 25,504 677,305 14477 55,107 656 (177.459) 950,548
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

an\ fﬁui //Zﬁ%?%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE -

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AARHZIR)

—NE+ZA=1+—HALFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F§ —E—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaE AR®TT AREFT
Operating activities EEEE
Cash generated from operations REEBRERS 21(b) 23,930 48,318
Income tax refund/(paid) BiRE (B EEH 338 (802)
Net cash generated from BETBMBRKBH
__operating activites 24268 4516
Investing activities BEEH
Payment for the purchase of property, TREEME BEX
plant and equipment BANE (20,006) (89,355)
Payment for the purchase of lease YNEEEEENK
prepayment - (6,356)
Interest received 2HFE 797 3,405
Payment for investment in associates AR E A RIRIEE = (1,350)
Dividend income received B BUA 461 354
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - F%&?&fﬁ
plant and equipment P15 70 1,037 -
Proceeds from disposal of lease {:Ij’%%ﬂﬁi‘ﬁﬁ-mﬁﬁ%%(
prepayment - 30,000
Net cash used in investing BRETHFFARSBHE
activities (17,711) (63,302)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued

A IEEnER®

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE -

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥FIR)

—NE+ZA=T—HLFE

2018 2017
ZE—)\F —E—+tF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
KiaF AR¥®TT ARBTT
Financing activities Al R E
Proceeds from new bank loans R ITE RS RIE 354,053 459,902
Repayments of bank loans EEIRITER (496,088) (625,129)
Decrease in pledged deposits BB FROR LD 60,864 65,678
Advance from associates B N B EVR - 22,517
Interest paid B A (8,876) (14,318)
Proceeds from issue of shares it E R BT B FT1S
upon placing, net of issuing costs A - BRI Y - 59,246
Subscription shares expense BRI = (168)
Net cash used in financing METEFRARE SRR
_ activites (90047) (32,.272)
Net decrease in cash and cash BeRBeEEMRYBH
equivalents (83,490) (48,058)
cash and cash equivalents H—B—HHBRERE S
at 1 January SED 113,501 173,986
Effect of foreigh exchange rate 33 )f:0f A
changes 7,989 (12,427)
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—H
at 31 December GeRBASEED 21(@) 38,000 113,501

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018



GENERAL INFORMATION

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 October 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”). The consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 29
March 2019.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E BT ISERR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

—REH
PRIEMERERAR(ARRDR-F
—— T+ ATEARBERSHEENE 22
BERAVE(—NAR—FEOIEIR - K5
MEF) EREHBEMK L SRR RAR
N e ARAR-ZE—-ZF+ ARNHEH
R LT e

HE-_Z—N\F+-A=+—HILFERN
BEMBRERIEARRARENB AR (5
MBIREE] - FEMBMEBEEN_Z
—NF=ZAZ TN BEEFE -
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

Statements

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that unlisted equity securities and derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair value (see note 2(h)
and 2(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea
& B &y R M aE e

/\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective ) RMFE]/ LAEFT B 7f
1 January 2018 BHmEE — BT —
F—H—HBBREX
The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSS Bl gt EAIEE G B MM A TRAR
that are first effective for the current accounting period SEEARENAE TR ERERKR

of the Group and the Company:

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions

Applying IFRS 9, “Financial instruments”
with IFRS 4, “Insurance contracts”

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of investment property
IFRS 9

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

Financial instruments

Revenue from contracts with customers

Clarifications to IFRS 15

Annual improvements — Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28
2014-2016 Cycle

IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (see Note 2(c)A below) and IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (see Note 2(c)B below)
have been summarised in below. The other new or
amended IFRSs that are effective from 1 January 2018 did
not have any material impact on the Group's accounting
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: (1)
classification and measurement; (2)
impairment and (3) hedge accounting. The
adoption of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 has
resulted in changes in accounting policies of
the Group and the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

With the exception of hedge accounting,
which the Group has applied prospectively,
the Group has recognised the transition
adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported
under IAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective ()

1 January 2018 (Continued)

A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

C UABEHEZTR)

2. EXEHBE®)

BRUNFR ] 42 42 5] B P A
BREEYN — B =F—N

E—E—Eﬁiﬂ%)

A ERMBRSENEIR —

BMIA(E)
() Classification and measurement of financial () SHTANSHELIE
instruments (Continued) (&)

The following tables summarised the impact,
net of tax, of transition to IFRS 9 on the BRE
opening balance of reserves and retained

TR B = B R B
HBIEOEEEHE
—E-NE—-—A—H®

profits as of 1 January 2018 as follows: YDA 15 B2 0 AR B
F(HMBRBIB) 20T
RMB'000
ARETT
Retained profits FEART
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RERREHENEIRR_2—1F
under IAS 39 +ZRA=+—-RHRE 366,211
Increase in expected credit losses (‘ECLS")intradeand B 5 R EMENGENRLAEEEE
other receivables (note 2(C)A(ii) below) ((BEEEBE]) EM T 20A0) (3,498)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 RERRMBEREEREISR
RZS-N\F—-F—RM%eR 362,713
Fair value reserve DFEGER
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under 1AS 39 REEREHERNE9R

Reclassify investments from available-for-sale at cost to
financial assets at fair value through other

AZB-tF AT AMER -
R EN TR ERABN D BERLTE
AR 2 ERENSEEE (I THEE2A0AN)

comprehensive income (note 2(C)A(i) below) 1,343
Balance as at 1 January 2018 BREERMEREENSE IR
under IFRS 9 RZZ-\§—F—HBES 1,343
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

e

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from 1AS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9
retains the requirements in IAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous
IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held
to maturity financial assets, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The adoption of IFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments. The impact of IFRS 9 on
the Group's classification and measurement
of financial assets is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under IFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with IFRS 15), an entity shall, at
initial recognition, measure a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs. A financial asset
is classified as: (i) financial assets at
amortised cost (“amortised costs”); (ii)
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or (iii)
FVTPL (as defined in above). The classification
of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally
based on two criteria: (i) the business model
under which the financial asset is managed
and (ii) its contractual cash flow
characteristics (the “solely payments of
principal and interest” criterion, also known
as "SPPI criterion”). Under IFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be
separated from a host financial asset. Instead,
the hybrid financial instrument is assessed as
a whole for the classification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A WIS RR N

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and it has not been designated as
at FVTPL:

o It is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

o It is held within a business model
whose objective is to be achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

° The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

/\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective

N e

1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment'’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.
All other financial assets not classified at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are classified as FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXBTEE@®@
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective © FRENFE]/ ST BB B

1 January 2018 (Continued)

BHREEY — BTN

F—A—BRREME)

A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued) A ERVBREENFEIR — 2
BIA(E)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () E=MITAMDEEFE
instruments (Continued) (&)
The following accounting policies would be BATR & 51 IR % i R R
applied to the Group’s financial assets as REEZ REE
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follows:

FVTPL
BRFER AR

Amortised cost
HSH R AR

FVOCI
(equity instruments)
BN EAEMEE
Was (RATA)

FVTPL is subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
BRAVEFABREERRATENE - A FE  REIFEWAHE

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

REHERATEZSHEAERARRAERNEETE - FIERA - E
HUes REE A RRERIERER o RIERRZ RGeS R -

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income is recognised
in profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.
BATEFAEMEERGENRAIREL QAT ENE - REWARE
mAER - BRIFREMARBRTBEBOIREKA o Bz K& E
BEERAMEERARRET@ENHEEER °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

N e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5R 4

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

As of 1 January 2018, an unguoted equity
investment was reclassified from available-
for-sale financial assets at cost to FVOCI. The
unquoted equity investment has no quoted
price in an active market. The Group intends
to hold this unquoted equity investment for
long term strategic purposes. In addition, the
Group has designated such unguoted equity
investment at the date of initial application as
measured at FVOCI. As at 1 January 2018, the
difference between the previous carrying
amount and the fair value of RMB1,343,000,
net of tax, has been included in the opening
fair value reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under IAS 39 and
the new measurement categories under IFRS
9 for each class of the Group’s financial
assets as at 1 January 2018:

Original
classification
Financial assets under 1AS 39

REEREER

2. EXREHBE®)

(©

New

classification
under IFRS 9
RIBEIR A

RN R] 1818 JIWﬁ

75
F—

A

S — BT —

S A

A—BRER E)

B REEREI® — &

BMIA(E)

() 2BITAENHERHE
()
TEBRAEER -
_)\EE_H_E (=] Eé
REERBERARE TS
B39 E A i B
Bl Rk 18 425 B B B 7% R 5
BRI B M B
K

Carrying amount Carrying amount

asat 1

January 2018 asat 1 January 2018
under 1AS 39 under IFRS 9

REEREER Wi iESapys el
FERWFEIRN FRRR_F-NE  FIRR_F-N\&

SREE FIRNREER ARl —A—-BMREE fﬂ AREAE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETT
Unlisted equity investment Available-for-sale (at cost) FVOCI 2,495 4,075
FEmBRARE AR E (RAE) BATEA
HA2ENE
Amount due from a related Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 67 65
company ERREWIER B
[EM S A R R
Amounts due from associates  Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 101 9%
(note) ERRENRFIE 3w
FEME & AR (st
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 128,642 124,278
B9 REMERTIE ERRERFIE B
Pledged deposits Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 78,261 78,261
BEAER ERRERFIE B
Cashand cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortised cost 113,501 113,501
RekReEED ERRENHT 3N

Note: The balance excluded prepayment to associates

for raw materials.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the
Group's impairment model by replacing the
IAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected
credit loss ("ECL") model”. IFRS 9 requires the
Group to recognise ECLs for trade receivables
and financial assets at amortised costs earlier
than IAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are
subject to ECL model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under IFRS 9, the loss allowances are
measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLS: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by IFRS 9, which requires the use of the
lifetime expected losses provision for all trade
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLS

ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure 10ss
allowances for trade receivables using IFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(il

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLS (Continued)

For other receivables, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLS are
the portion of the lifetime ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLS. When determining whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLS (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (2)
a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

Presentation of ECLS

Loss allowances for financial assets
measured at amortised cost are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of the assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea
& B &y R M aE e

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXBTEE @
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective ) RMFE]/ LAEFT B 7f
1 January 2018 (continued) BEREER — B T —
¢ HA—HEER &)
A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued) A EBRFBBREENFEIR — 2
BMIAE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i)  EEEHEE)
Impact of the ECL model TEEEEEEEXNTE

() Impairment of trade receivables () B ZENKERE
As mentioned above, the Group applies 0 _ESCATa - AR
the IFRS 9 simplified approach to [ £R A B PR B 7% 3R
measure ECLs which recognises lifetime AR E AL
ECLs for all trade receivables. To AR ERAEEE
measure the ECLS, trade receivables B HREES
have been grouped based on shared FEUGRERA 2
credit risk characteristics and the days BHEERE - A
past due. The contract assets have ATEEHBMEER
substantially the same risk as the trade B B 5 EWIE
receivables. The loss allowance for BIREAFREER
trade receivables as at 1 January 2018 b ¥ B Mg EA R
was determined as follows: ol - aHEE

B8 5 R IRGRIER

ke KEARR - &

SRWFIER T
—N\FE—-—A—BH
BEEEETEN
T
More than
3 months
but less
Less than 1t03 than 12 More than
1month  months  months 12 months
1 January 2018 Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
—Z-)\¥-F-A BHea
3fER
aaon bk L2 S 01
L 1187 1E3f8R 12{8R 12{8R #it
Bxpected crecltloss rate (%) RHEERRLE®Y 0.82% 227% 612%  1243%  2961%
Gross camyingamountexcluding  EEZE(TRREEERA)
specific debtors (RMB000) (\R®TT) 90,005 6,223 1,542 9,587 4 112128
Loss allowance (RMB000) BRER(ARETT) 738 141 94 1192 1413 3578
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHEm®
(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective € IRMFE]/ LA T B 7f

1 January 2018 (continued) BRmEER — BT —

fﬁ H—BRRER @)
A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued) A ERVBREENFEIR — 2
BIEE)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) Z@EEHEE)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued) TEEEEEEEXNTE
(#8)
Impairment of trade receivables () B ZBENEEE
(Continued) (%)

The increase in loss allowance for trade RZZE—-N\F—AH
receivables upon the transition to IFRS —HBEZBERE
9 as of 1 January 2018 were BHMELNEIR
RMB3,578,000. The loss allowance &M E 5 EYGRIE
further increased for RMB1,048,000 for o) SEE LB DIUN
trade receivables during the year ended R #3,578,0007T ©
31 December 2018. HEZZFT-N\F
+=—A=+—H1t
FE - EHRER
B EBREE—
I mARE

1,048,000 7T °

Impairment of other receivables

Other financial assets at amortised cost
of the Group include amount due from
a related company, amounts due from
associates and other receivables.
Applying the ECL model results in the
recognition of ECL of RMB791,000 on 1
January 2018 and reversal of ECL for
RMB406,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

),

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional
provision in IFRS 9 such that IFRS 9 was
generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new ECLS rules are
therefore not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, but
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1
January 2018. This means that
differences in the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9
are recognised in retained profits and
reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented
for 2017 does not reflect the
requirements of IFRS 9 but rather those
of IAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

A IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

() Transition (Continued)
The following assessments have been
made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at the date
of initial application of IFRS 9 (the “DIA"):

. The determination of the business
model within which a financial
asset is held;

o The designation and revocation of
previous designations of certain
financial assets and financial
liabilities as measured at FVTPL,;
and

° The designation of certain
investments in equity investments
not held for trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt instrument
had low credit risk at the DIA, then the
Group has assumed that the credit risk
on the asset had not increased
significantly since its initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

rE

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“IFRS 15")

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts,
IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations. IFRS 15
has established a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
g00ds or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical
expedients. The adoption of IFRS 15 does not have
a significant impact on when the Group recognises
revenue from sales of products.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of
IFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits as at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported under
IAS11, IAS 18 and related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o
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A BISREN FE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective € HENFTE]/ LS ET BT 7f
B &R —

1 January 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
customers (“IFRS 15") (Continued)
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The following tables summarised the impact of
adopting IFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018. There was no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flow for the year

ended 31 December 2018:
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Amounts prepared under

BREUTRIRROSHE
Previous Increase/
IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)
e g BER
WEER ERRE
1558 wEER /i, (&)
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARETT ARETT ARETT
Current liabilities mB AR
Trade and other ZHREMENZIE
payables 22 57,300 80,433 (23,133)
Contract liabilities aHaRE 23 23,133 - 23,133
Total current mBRREE
liabilities 197,862 197,862 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

Cc

Amendments IFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
IFRS 15)

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on the consolidated financial statements as the
Group had not previously adopted IFRS 15 and took
up the clarifications in this, its first, year.

IFRIC 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on
determining the date of the transaction for
determining an exchange rate to use for
transactions that involve advance consideration
paid or received in a foreign currency and the
recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability. The Interpretation specifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part thereof) is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has
insignificant impact on the consolidated financial
Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or 10ss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by IFRSS.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(e) Subsidiaries

L E

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

nﬂ?
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

B BHRRM T

(Continued)

()

ASSOciates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 2(m)A(ii)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group's long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Group’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)A(ii).

BERETHE#)

(I NEINE )
RN TR AT e A IS R & o
SERE AR © IRIBIEROE - BAY

BIRPK A ABR - W RE A S R (L iR
BREWEE AR EBIEEFAELA
TEBLIRERARE S (0F)1E
EFAEE o i1k - RIRERARNE@ATG
WRE R R EEFENERIERD
B REREE R ERERBIEE
AR (R EE 20m)AGD)) - Wi E B
BHERAREAE D  NEEFAE
EWIRE R R BN B EEUAR
R EBEN GRS BRRER M
REBELEIRE N RKEENTIE
Htz2ElmEE R meEm Rt
ZHEHBRRAER

BARSEEIEE S QR EBIERLE
SR NEENESKRARE
T WA BEBEMER  HERHA

BAAEEESEERME  SHRK
?ﬁ&éﬁA BT RAIBRSN - BhUET =
AEE L ERER AT HARE
REENLLEE EBNASE L
RENREFE A0 AN B R

o

REBREBENRRZAELHNAR
BHBG  AARBEMERRERQR
e AR  EMEBIBRTAR
HIRBERETANAEREELRRE
FEL - RIBDEF B2 RERR o

RAKEOHBARREK - REpE QA
% B TR AR E B 1R (R B A
MA(ii)) E=#EDI Bk -

AR AIR AT
—E\EEH

101



102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

() The aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) The net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(g Goodwill
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
AT RAM e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(w).

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as financial assets
at FVOCI. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from equity securities are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(w).

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHBE®)
(Continued)
(n) Other investments in equity securities (h HRAFEHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(h) Other investments in equity securities

AU THREM T

(Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is transferred between reserves within equity (i.e.
between the fair value reserves and retained profits).
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or 10ss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or l0ss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 2(2)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

BERETTHE#)

(h)

H R ANFBHFIEE (@)

?ﬂé?ﬁﬁ BRI HERSORER (R
(m)  REZERNRABEER
%E%ﬁZF‘aﬁ(Eﬂ A e R AR

N2 ) B - RE IR AR E A
wBE HEREERAEMIRES
HARSRERR, KR L FERR

TTESRMT A
PTESBTANSRATERR - A
TERNEREMRENE - BH

EERFERELMBRAGNIE
RAFER °

E NG
W - BERREERAR R E
ROR B BFRE (RAEE2) -

¥ BEIEENEREERAR
EMERA  BETE - FERBE
18 B LA R R A FE T 7E IR 3R A R AR
BB EE (B ) REE LAl
SEMEZEBERARBERE(RME
2@2)) °

WE - BMENRREEB REREER
EENAE RO EMSHURFRA
HEMKRAECHOZHETE 85
RERRES & A N BE R ARER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

B BHRRM T

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives as follows:

The shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion

— Buildings

Over the unexpired term of lease but
no more than 5 years

— Leasehold improvement

— Plant and machinery 10 years

— Furniture, fittings 5years
and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(n)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and installation during the construction
period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready
for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Leased assets

An ar

rangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a

deter

mination is made based on an evaluation of the

substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

0}

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)

)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"). Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through OCI. Debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or 10ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment'’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using IFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group'’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) a breach of contract
such as a default or past due event.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For noncredit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)

BERETHE#)

m AT AE(B-_ZE—N\F
7ﬂ Hﬁ_%ﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬁﬁl

attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

(Continued) ®R)#)

(iii) Financial liabilities (iiiy £HMEE
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, rEERTeRBEEENE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for the gains and losses arising from the
Group’s own credit risk which are presented in
other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or l0ss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) A. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(v)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(m) B. Fi

nancial Instruments (accounting

policies applied until 31 December 2017)

The group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has

elect
Acco

ed not to restate comparative information.
rdingly, the comparative financial information

provided continues to be accounted for in accordance

with t

)

he group’s previous accounting policy.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 10ss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) B. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Held-to-maturity investments

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or oss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) B. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor,

. a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinguency in interest or principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

. it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) B. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For Loans and receivables or Held-to-maturity
investments

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

For Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of
the loss is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or l0ss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) B. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment 10ss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) B. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) B. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or l0ss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) B. Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(v)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with IAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ccontined)
& B &y R M aE e

NF
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHBE®)
(Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (other than financial (n EERE(2HEERIN)

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o lease prepayments,
o goodwill;

o non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

o investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another IFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that IFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

AU THREM T

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (other than financial

assets) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that IFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(0) Inventories

B BHRRM T

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(p) Trade and other receivables

AU THREM T

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)A(ii)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less ECLS (see note 2(m)
Alii)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using an effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(S)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

B BHRRM T

(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(U) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

. in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

o in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

B BHRRM T

(Continued)

v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group's performance:

J provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

2.

BERETTHE#)

J‘IQiEI%ﬁEH/U(E /\E_
H*Et%%maﬁﬁ <)
(&)
BIEHGRRTERRAOEERE
B AR TS RO SR B HE P RE RS R S0 K
— SR - WMAKEERBIZ
FomE TAIEE - AR REHE
I RER SR

o  REEFPRKWEKIBFENM
B Mz

s AKEBRARARIREANFP
PREHIMEE + 3k

s UEAIEHAKEEERAS
MEE - BARKE R EHIIT
HEMBEES B KB
DGR

i 8 YIRS O B BE R R 87
W 2EEEAOBMMTKENE
B ETTRER - TR WaENT
F RS E Yk IR 7% rO 12 il fE R B K —
By F) R AR ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

B BHRRM T

(w) Revenue recognition (accounting policies

appl

)

ied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Sale of goods

The principal activities of the Group are
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products, retail sales of outdoor wooden products
through self-operated retail shops and
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.

The Group’s revenue is derived from selling goods
with revenue recognised at a point in time when
control of the goods has transferred to the
customer. This is generally when the goods are
delivered to the customer. There is limited
judgment needed in identifying the point control
passes: once physical delivery of the products to
the agreed location has occurred, the Group no
longer has physical possession, usually will have a
present right to payment (as a single payment on
delivery) and retains none of the significant risks
and rewards of the goods in question. There is
generally only one performance obligation. Invoices
are usually payable within 90-180 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

/\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

L E

(w) Revenue recognition (accounting policies

appl

(ii)

(iii)

ied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Other income

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(@  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(b)  Other income

Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

B BHRRM T

(Continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (accounting policies

)

applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(iv) Contract assets and liabilities (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are recognised as deferred income that is
recognised in profit or l0ss on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset. An unconditional government
grant is recognised in profit or loss as other revenue
when the grant becomes receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

BB HRRM T

(Continued)
(y) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of
financial position items including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into Renminbi at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation with
functional currency other than Renminbi is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

nﬂ‘
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

N e

(Continued)

v

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(aa) Related parties

@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Vi

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associates of the
same third party or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

2 A BT SRR M s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(aa) Related parties (continuea)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

viii. The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

i. that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner,

ii.  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

ii.  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(bb) Segment reporting
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

b2 & B S R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
historical experience of selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles or changes
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of the reporting period to ensure
inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

(ii) Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment of trade receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected credit
loss rates. Management adopts judgment in making
these assumptions and selecting inputs for computing
such impairment loss, broadly based on the available
customers’ historical data, existing market conditions
including forward looking estimates at the end of the
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade receivables and impairment losses in the periods
in which such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based
on the Group's historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgment is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair
value less costs of disposal. These calculations require
the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to profit or loss.

S HE R A )

HET TR REEMN E Z2RR (@)

(v)

M - BERRERE

WA B RIS B BB RREER 8L
PR EES - REESEHDE - K
FREmapE - AR E e iRE
REEFERRFER D EKRAE
TE o % H AT E R0 A R AR o

EREAHEAERNERE  LHER
FHE (RECDELAEBRTERE
EBESARERES (i) FTiE
S (B D FER SRR RN
BRREEREEMTAORIERDR
EFREMERTNREE) LR
ZEEENKREE: RINAERER
EREBATERNEEETERE
BRZEHEREVIAREEMEE
REIREBRIR - WEIRE M AR ERE
WERR(BRERSREFRATRAN
FER R YIR R RMR) KE - AIATRE
GHRERN AT ERRFREESE
BEAFE  AmMpPERKENT R
NP ERE - HIRFTRBEMAER
KA MEFRUHREANTHESD
AR e AERET MR ER

TREMERERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 3.
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) fhEr NEABAE R E 2 RIR )
(vi) Fair value measurement (vi) AFEFE

SR HE R A )

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

° Level 1.  Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2 Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:
o Financial instruments (note 32(f)).
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the
applicable notes.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

§+A$Elﬁﬁﬁiﬁi€2%lﬁﬁ§&ﬁ
EREATEFE  RSIEER
BIREE -

AEBESRMIFEREENABZA
FEFERTEEAMSIEREHA
BELHE - BEAFEFERER
ZBEABBTERNEETDEPAE
REABENABRIZED R TR
ERANXFHESER])

. g HREBREERTS MR

B (CRERE)

—RBABBNINEE
RFRTEREAME

o FB=R: TUBRERARE(DEZL
BTSRRI ©

DR LA E IR B T E R P
UZEBATEFEELAEAREY
RESFEBABIREE - SRR
BEENEEL BRER
AEBEZATEFHESERR

o ETRIAME32) -

BB LMTER A PEFENEZFHA
BF - B2HERME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5R 4

AU THREM T

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sales of outdoor wooden products, retail sales of
outdoor wooden products through self-operated retail
shops and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope
of IFRS 15:

C UABEHEZTR)

4 WARDHEHR#)

@)

YA

AEBNERERREEREEPI
AEG  BREETEETEPINR
HmAREEMEEBERRER

REIRFEHREERNE1SRBER
HEP A

2018 2017
ZE-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Sales of outdoor wooden products SHE P INRELR 618,872 436,841
Retail sales of wooden products TERR R 1,254 5,280
Sales of renewable energy products  $4&E B4 ERE @ 14,560 20,070

634,686 462,191
Information about major customers ERETEEZENER

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenues from
one (2017: one) customer of the Group’s sales of outdoor
wooden products amounted to RMB66,120,000 (2017:
RMB70,325,000), which represent 10% or more of the
Group’s revenues.

HEZZ - \GFF+ZA=+—HILF
B REAEBEHEEPIRRME—
Z(ZZ—1F: —R)BPHBRAR
AR 866,120,000 ( =T — £ 4F :
AR #70,3250007T) * 15 A5 @ UL
AE10% A £ -

RN ERERAT
—E\EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

/\\/T\

A BT IR M s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEHEH =)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue (continued) @ WA
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHNE
Disaggregation of revenue information WA S EFEH
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by TREXZWENS TEERRK
primary geographical markets, major products and timing AFERRE DA -
of revenue recognition.
2018
—Z-0\%
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Retail energy
products business products Total
EERNE LERNE
A& SERE BEREER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE%TT AE®TT AE®TT AE®TT
Primary geographical markets TEHETR
The PRC (place of domicile) HE (i) 130,305 1,254 14,560 146,119
North America JEEN 260,111 - - 260,111
Europe BUM 30,349 - - 30,349
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) TRE(TaERE) 10,162 - - 10,162
Australasia BANER 187,945 - - 187,945
618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686
Major products IBER
Wooden products e 618,872 1,254 - 620,126
Renewable energy products BEERER - - 14,560 14,560
618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686
Timing of revenue recognition It A BB
Product transferred at a point in time EnEpENE AR 618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

N e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

4 WARDHEHR#)

(Continued)
(@) Revenue (continued) @ YA
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EEEHWE (&)
Disaggregation of revenue information (Continued) WA D BEER (E)
The following table provides information about trade TREFNELANWREE FHEK
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with HERGHEENER -
customers.
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
ZE-N\E —E-N\F
+=A=+-8 —A—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFT
Trade receivables (note 19) B S WA (M 5E19) 121,888 108,550
Contract liabilities (note 23) SHEEPIEE23) (23,133) (10,094)
(b) Segment reporting b)) PDE=ZH
In a manner consistent with how the Group manages its %*E EE1$ BEBEER —HNH

business and the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified three
reportable segments, namely Manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, Retail business and Manufacturing and
sales of renewable energy products. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

o Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

o Retail business: retail sales of outdoor wooden
products through self-operated retail shops.

o Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass pellet
fuel to both domestic and overseas customers.

A

HFEEIRD B R KRR RAR
%‘E. T—J_E.EEFW*BEE#EQ?H By
AR AEEERE=FEIT2®RS
H-RMEERHEEAER  TEEK
NREERHEFERRER - A%
B A A ) BELARE R i A 2
HEp -

o  AERHEEAE®: AEASN
EPEERMEPIIRER R
AHES e

. TEXK: BRAEETERT
ERPINRER -

s HAENMHEBLERREM &
ENHELEME BRI TR
RINEP -

RN ERERAT
—E\EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

0}

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group's external
customers by Manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, Retail business and Manufacturing and
sales of renewable energy products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) after taxation (excluding the
after tax effect of government subsidies)” of
Manufacturing and sales of wooden products,
Retail business and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is
not provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management and accordingly, no
segment assets or liabilities information is
presented.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

ARE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

N e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 G551

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

C UABEHEZTR)

4

(i) Segment results (Continued) () oWEHE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable RE —NER_FT—+
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior F+-A=+—HLEFE #
executive management for the purposes of BIRDE & ERBTERA
resource allocation and assessment of segment SESREEERENEBAAL
performance for the years ended 31 December SET 2D FEE R w0
2018 and 2017 is set out below: N
2018
k- 2|82
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Retail energy
products business products Total
EER
LERME HEBE
REE SERE HRER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ABRTT ARRTT ARRTT ARRTT
Revenue derived from the Group's  BEAEENSEP
external customers A 618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686
Inter-segment revenue AHERA 11,764 - 2,208 13,972
Reportable segment revenue 2R HRA 630,636 1,254 16,768 648,658
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A2RHB(EE)/EH
((loss)/ profit after taxation ik (B8)/ &7
(excluding the after tax effect of (TRERERZ
government subsidies)) HETE)) (186,107) (1,622) 2,512 (185,217)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (34,414) (436) (507) (35,357)
Changes in fair value of derivative {74 2B TAATEEH —
financial instruments — unrealised K& 190 - - 190
Impairment of property, plantand 1% - B k& fEH(E
equipment (139,251) - - (139,251)
Impairment of lease prepayments &R ZERE (23,263) - - (23,263)
Written-off of inventories HFEMH (7,931) - - (7,931)
PR AENERERA

—E\EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

2 A B TSR 2 M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B # R4

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

C UAABRHEZTR)

4 WARDHEHR#)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) b HE=2FHwE
(i) Segment results (Continued) iy PHEEE)
2017
“E-tF
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Retail energy
products business products Total
EEREE FEREE
A TEEH BERRER e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
Revenue derived from the Group's ~ JRAAEESNPER
external customers HUA 436,841 5,280 20,070 462,191
Inter-segment revenue DERMA 17,629 - 3,105 20,734
Reportable segment revenue ERFBRA 454,470 5,280 23175 482,925
Reportable segment (loss)/profit PEL:GE 78T
(loss)/profit after taxation (BH% (BB)/B7
(excluding the after tax effect of (TEERFER
government subsidies) RiEze) (44,515) (1,946) 3541 (42,920)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (23730) (1,234) (507) (25477)
Changes infair value of derivative  $TE 2B T AR TEED
financial instruments — unrealised ~ — REE (12,307) - - (12,307)
Impairment of propertyplantand 9%~ BiE R ERE
equipment (2,323 - - (2,323
Written-off of inventories FEHE (2,354) - - (2,354)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

2 A BT SRR M s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 G551

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue and reportable segment loss

C UABEHEZTR)

WARDEHEH %)

(b) PDECR2¥R#)
(i) TE2|H WURA BT 25 5B

B R IR
2018 2017
—EB-N\%F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue A 2o FWA 648,658 482,925
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %445 2RI 4 A (13,972) (20,734)
Consolidated revenue AU A 634,686 462,191
Loss Fi]
Reportable segment loss derived  JREAREBEINEEFH

from the Group's external A2 EE

customers (185,217) (42,920)
Government subsidies (net of tax) BT AL (FORRELIE) 5,849 9,589
Unallocated head office and ROBLBMERE R

corporate expenses NGl (5,563) (7,225)
Consolidated loss after taxation SEABRTIAER (184,931) (40,556)

RRMEYIERERLE

—E\EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEHEH =)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b HE=2FHwE
(iii) Geographical information (iii) HIMER
Revenue from external customers IREINEBE PN
The geographical location of customers is based on BEPRMIBMEIAE R T
the location at which the goods were delivered. BRI o
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

The PRC (place of domicile) HRE (fEFTh) 146,119 107,332
North America =M 260,111 236,279
Europe BN 30,349 18,303
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) TRE(TEERRH) 10,162 16,945
Australasia EKXH#EL 187,945 83332
488,567 354,859
634,686 462,191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5R 4

AU THREM T

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS

(@)

C UABEHEZTR)

5.

HW AR b &858

Other revenue (@) HARA
2018 2017
—E—N\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TRT ARBETT
Interest income on bank deposits 1TIEEZF B U A 797 3,405
Government subsidies Eﬁz!ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ 7,022 11,418
Dividend income f& B A 461 354
Rental income A2 WA 290 204
Others EAh 910 396
9,480 15,777
The Group received unconditional government subsidies HE_Z-\F+_A=+—HIF

of RMB5,859,000 (2017: RMB10,255,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. These government subsidies
were granted to Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry
Products Co, Ltd. (“Zhangping Kimura”) and Unicreed
Industry & Trade Co., Ltd. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attaching to these
government grants.

The Group recognised government subsidies as deferred
income which compensates the Group for the cost of its
land use right and the cost of infrastructure development.
RMB1,163,000 government subsidies (deferred income)
(2017: RMB1,163,000) were recognised as other revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2018, which is on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the relevant
assets.

& - AREEWEE G BTEEEAR
5,859,000 (—E—+4F : AR
10,255,0007T ) © 1& & & & F AR
EBR A ([NEFARF ) & Unicreed
Industry & Trade Co., Ltd & # 1tk Z K
PR BE o 7% 55 BUIT #6 Bh 37 & R 2 /Y
fErsk B EIE -

7N & B W R U 47 B R i ST A E
HEAREE T AR A REER
ERERER - HBEZT—N\F+=A
=t+—BIFE - BUTHR GEZW
M) AR#1,163,00070( T —+4F :
AR®1,163,0007T) B R AH AL
A T REEEEN A ERFE
RFHORER o

RN ERERAT
—E\EEH
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A BT IR M s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B ERIN + AN RESIR)

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5.
(Continued)

(b) Other net loss

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

HW AR EMEERE )

(b) H &5 HRF 58

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Net foreign exchange (l0ss)/gain FEH (&518), W= FaE (5,346) 8,966
Change in fair value of derivative PTESRIANTE (4,036) (3,448)
financial instruments — realised g — @5
Changes in fair value of derivative PTESRMTIANTE
financial instruments — unrealised BE)— KEIR 190 (12,307)
Gain on disposal of land use right S o AR M e - 580
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - BEMEERE
plant and equipment 1 105
Impairment of property, plant and WE -« BB MR ERE
equipment (139,251) (2,323)
Impairment of lease prepayments FEmEMNFKERE (23,263) -
Impairment of trade and other E 5 RE M EWGRIERE
receivables = (3,493)
Written-off of inventories EASEii6ic (7,931) (2,354)
Others A, (387) (610)
(180,023) (14,884)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

=IAN
AT

B 15 Rk Y sk o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(@)

BRELATE 1R

BB REGR TS RE ST

Finance costs B & AR
2018 2017
ZB-I\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREET T
Interest expense on bank loans and BT EZREEHHT EEL
debentures 8,895 14,501
Less: Interest expense capitalised into 3 : AR TR BN
construction in progress* FERL* = (8,285)
8,895 6,216
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.01% per * BE-_Z—+H+-_A=+—HIFE

annum for the year ended 31 December 2017. No borrowing costs
have been capitalised for the year ended 31 December 2018.

W18 B A AN B 123.01% B F R & AL, o
BE-_Z-)\F+_A=1t—HILFE

WG B AR E AL, -
Staff costs 8 TN
2018 2017
ZE—)\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥®TT ARBTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENREMET 33,979 30,862
Contributions to defined contribution  EEBEFGERET IR
retirement schemes 1,497 1,745
35,476 32,607

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group’s entities in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby
the entities are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of
existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

REBEFENERBEEAER - A
SEURTENEB2 ML ERSE
O E B SRR AR AU A B (T &xaT
) Bt FRBERARBE_T
—NERZE—F+-A=+—H
LEERAERERFMO—Ea D
Leraazat BRI R o Saat BIE D
RV RN SRR o IRIZA RS - 3R
B MR KR B R R4 M i AE R AT &)
EEEEXN  REEHRN - AE
EEE—FEE-

RN ERERAT
—E\EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

AT e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)
6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6.

A BT IR M s

(c) Otheritems

MREAIEE 2
(0 HMIEHE

2018 2017

—E—-N\E —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT AEBTT

Cost of inventories* TFERAR 566,161 430,018
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ BMEMERETE

equipment 33,733 23,756

Amortisation of lease prepayments TAETEN EREE Y 1,635 1,732

Operating lease charges for properties #3&LFLI H 451 593

Research and development costs (R %N 22,969 21,049

Auditors’ remuneration % LA B & 1,066 1,089

Cost of inventories includes RMB52,223,000 (2017: RMB37,090,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 relating to staff costs,

# HEZZ-N\F+ZA=+—-HIHF

JE‘ 17 & A 85 A R %5 52,223,000 7T
—+F : AR#37,090,0007T) 3%
REBIRA  ERMAERE  EHEe
FBINE 5T AR £ SCE I E 6D) 3t B %

depreciation and research and development costs, which amount

—~

is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in note 6(b) for each of these types of

expenses. LHYBEBEREENESEN -
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. ZREEBEBERAVFAEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) HreBEmiRAMIIETS
profit or loss represents:
2018 2017
—E—)\fF T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Current tax — PRC corporate ENHAIRIE — FEIL RS
income tax
Provision for the year FREE 182 441
Over-provision in respect of prior years B8 1E 4F 45 B8 ) FB S R 15 (210) -
Deferred tax BIERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary  E4 R EE &S
differences 2,163 1,912
2,135 2,353

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REBEZRANFAEHR #)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) HEAMEGFTENTIEFH
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: Bt Al B R
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREF T
Loss before taxation M FH AT E A (182,796) (38,203)
National tax on loss before taxation, B AIEENZERE
calculated at the rates applicable 1RB TS AR
in the tax jurisdictions concerned BRANMETE
note (i) & (ii) (B () B (i) (42,522) (10,290)
Effect of non-taxable income \u%TRMUKZ%; (1) (3,030)
Effect of income reduction (note (iv)) Hﬁz AR HI 2 (M 5E (V) (419) (580)

Effect of deductible temporary RIERA G =ENTE
differences not recognised - 7,281

Effect of non-deductible expenses IR o a2 43,174 5,069
Effect of research and development — #F2¢RIZ inEH IR RER) 2 &

expense bonus deduction (note (i) (Ft3E (i) (4,307) (2,631)
Tax loss not recognised ﬂﬁ: 2 FIBEE 6,420 6,534
Over-provision in respect of prior years BB 1T £ E B BRI BLEEE (210) -
Actual tax expense EEEH B H 2,135 2,353
Notes: B -

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate AN @ H) R B KT B R BB 1R 25% A TE
REMPBECEMEH  SHEERER

specified. Hho

income tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at the REAMRIEER M E A RNBIES B

appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant REBREEENETEE R R -
jurisdictions respectively.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group HE-_Z-\ER=-_Z—+tF+=A
=t—HLFE- ZS%@IM#ELE,@
Profits Tax during the years ended 31 December 2018 and MBE BTSSR ERBUER - S0

2017. ERBEFISBA RS -

did not earn any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7.

A BT IR M s

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Notes: (Continued)

Vi.

Zhangping Kimura applied and was approved for the High and
New Technology Entities (“"HNTE") qualification under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2016, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax
rate of 15% for a period of three years from 2016 to 2018.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
relevant regulations, qualified research and development
expenses are subject to income tax deductions at 175% (2017:
150%) on the amount actually incurred.

Income reduction as stated in Article 33 of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law shall refer to the treatment that where an
enterprise uses the resources stipulated in the Catalogue for
Comprehensive Utilization of Resources Qualified for Enterprise
Income Tax Preferential Treatment as its major raw materials to
produce products that are not restricted or prohibited by the
State and satisfy the relevant State and industrial criteria and
only 90% of the income derived shall be calculated in its total
income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
relevant regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident
corporate investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject
to withholding income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax
treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January
2008.

In addition to the amount charged to the other comprehensive
income, deferred tax of RMB121,000 relating to the change in
fair value of the financial assets for the year ended 31
December 2018 has been credited to other comprehensive
income.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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(b) BRI =X
EE s MR
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X

At ERRIAR

Htet - (&)

Vi.

BEYARNER B RFREDBEILE
FRSBOR R EABRDA MR AR L ES R
it E(SHRMEEDNOREE
B HR_F-AEE_T-/\F=F
HRERZHE 15%NEEMEHBE -

REBPECERSTEREERER
BERMBERAXARERELSEN
175% (= Z—+4F : 150%) FBRFTEH

(R BEFT1S B ) SR 33 iRt i FE AR T MK
ARRIERFEMEREAFIALRME
BEEEHORENERESEIERM
B EEBZGERSIRE LA
RATEAABARENERDUSHRA - 1%
0% 5T AW A B EE

HRIE B FISBUA R EARRER -
FPEEREREAEHTBEEREERA
ZRRN\F—F— B RRE A T H R
Wl B ZRIZ 10% B T RGN TE B - 1
BT K sk 22 BV R R S 1R Rl o

Bet ARt 2E RSN SEN  BEZ
—NF+_A=t+—HLFEF@ES

MEEAFEZPNELTHBAARE

121,000 2 st AR AR A W2 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEBBREHEDISE383(N) BT R A A (FEE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EENER)ROE2HEERTE S
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FHEIR ¢

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2018
—2-\5
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind honuses contributions Total
we 2R
£ 30k Enfg WL EHEER &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TFT N B N B ARBTT AR®TFT

Executive directors BiTEE

WuZheyan REZ 738 4 31 4 7

Xie Qingmel HEE 47 1 9 - 57

777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 785 5 40 4834

Non-executive director FUTER

Wu Dongping RET 143 - 1" - 154

Independent non-executive directors BIkQTESR

Lam Hin Chi EREE 102 o - - 102

JinZhongwei £EAR 102 - - - 102

Su Wengiang By 102 - - - 102

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, i - 5 - e
1,234 5 51 4 1,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

C UAABRHEZTR)

8. EEHFM»)

2017
It -3
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
g8 RER
20k ENfla BERT  BIGHEIER @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETT ARETT ARETFL ARETTL ARETTL
Executive directors BiEE
Wu Zheyan REE 1,138 4 3 4 1,149
Xie Qingmei Ex % 4 3 4 107
1,234 8 6 8 1,256
Non-executive director FUTES
Wu Dongping RRY 144 - - - 144
Independent non-executive directors BikbfES
Lam Hin Chi EES 104 - - - 104
JinZhongwei SER % - - - %
SuWengiang ESC % - - - 9%
300 - - - 300
1,678 8 6 8 1,700

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. BREFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017: BHE_FT-NF+A=+—HIFE"
two) are directors for the year ended 31 December 2018, TEERERFWALH  —B(ZT—+t%F:
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of TR)ABREE  HENFIAWESIEE -
the emoluments in respect of the other three (2017: three) BTI=ZZ(ZZE—+F: =8&) ALHH
individuals are as follows: EEmn
2018 2017
—E-N\f§ —tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFT
Salaries and other emoluments e R HE A 573 998
Discretionary bonuses E’\Jlﬁ*E,%I 27 152
Retirement scheme contributions RREBI 17 32
617 1,182
The emoluments of the three individuals (2017: three =HR(ZE—tF ZF)maFHALTH
individuals) with the highest emoluments are within the B ?TE‘J%@%
following bands:
2018 2017
ZE-N\E T—+tF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB N
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR¥ 1,000,000 70 3 3
3 3
RREYIERERAT

—E2-\FEFER



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 is based on the loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB184,931,000 (2017:
RMB40,556,000) and weighted average of 3,088,335,000 shares
(2017: 3,030,542,000 shares) in issue during the year ended 31
December 2018, calculated as follows:

’éﬁ’isﬂﬁ
HE-Z-N\F+ZA=1+—HLFEN
tﬂx%més%am;@z —ZT-N\F+=A
=+ —HLEFENARRARERTE ARN
BB AR #184,931,00070( = FE —+ 4 ¢
AR ¥ 40,556,0007T ) + A & 3,088,335,000
& B TR (== — 14 : 3,030,542,000
RRAR 1) RIS HETE - HY T ¢

Number of shares

BinEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F§ e
‘000 ‘000
TFB Fix
Weighted average number of ordinary THEPREAR R ESEEE
shares for the purpose of basic and S B mAR hnAE F 19 &
diluted loss per share 3,088,335 3,030,542

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and, therefore,
diluted loss per share are the same as the basic loss per share.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. Y% -BERRKE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fittings and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
il #RE
[ k2 NREE HREREH R RE ERIE #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ABRBFT ABRBFT ABRTR AB®TR ABR®TR ARBTT ABRBFT

COST: BE:
At 1 January 2017 RZ$-t%¥-F-A 201421 5839 113,028 6,138 8,033 294,686 629,145
Additions hE - - 6410 136 21 105,908 112,478
Disposal fe - - (5,694) - - - (5,694)
Transfers i 319,057 - 21,565 - - (340,622) -

At 31 December 2017 and RZS—-tF+ZA=+-H

1 January 2018 R=%-N\§-B-A 520,478 5839 135,309 6,274 8,057 59972 735929
Addtions RE - 6 2026 2 2852 15,09% 20,006
Disposal e - - (12,052) (209) (1,165) - (13,426)
Transfers a5 40,493 - 5,136 61 - 45,690) -
At 31 December 2018 RZ2-\E+ZA=+-H 560,971 5845 130,419 6,152 9,744 29378 742,509

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  REHF&EREE :

AND IMPAIRMENT:
At 1 January 2017 R-S-t£-A-H 36,393 4,626 31,242 3623 5218 - 81,102
Charge for the year FRY 9,814 1,106 11,373 608 855 - 23,756
Elimination on disposal REEREE - - (2421) - - - (2,421)
Impairment losses HEEE - - 2323 - - - 2323

At 31 December 2017 and RZS-t&+ZA=+-H

1 January 2018 —E-\5-B-H 46,207 5732 42,517 4,231 6,073 - 104,760
Charge for the year FAZH 20423 84 11762 546 918 - 3733
Elimination on disposal RHERER - - (7,005) (156) (1,090) - (8251)
Impairment losses HEEE 142,690 - 6995 145 213 - 150,073
At 31 December 2018 RZZ8-\E+ZA=+-H 209,320 5816 54,269 4,766 6,144 - 280,315
NET BOOK VALUE: RESE:

At 31 December 2018 RZS-N\E+ZA=+-H 351,651 29 76,150 1,386 3,600 29378 462,194
At 31 December 2017 RZS—-t£+ZAZ+-A 47421 107 92,792 2,043 1984 59972 631,169
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Buildings which are held for own use are situated in the PRC.
At 31 December 2018, buildings with net book value of
RMB59,631,000 (2017: RMB97,045,000), plant and machinery
with net book value of RMB59,029,000 (2017: RMB74,701,000)
and construction in progress with net book value of
RMB4,757,000 (2017: RMB2,266,000) were pledged to banks for
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 24(c)).

During the year, two of the subsidiaries of the Group were
subjected to impairment review. An impairment loss of
RMB139,251,000 was recognised in other gains and losses to
write the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment
down to its recoverable amount of RMB462,194,000.

The recoverable amount was based on the fair value less cost
of disposal of the property, plant and equipment estimated by
reference to the market value for the existing use of the
property, plant and equipment and the costs to reproduce or
replace in new condition the property, plant and equipment
being valued in accordance with current construction costs for
similar property, plant and equipment, with allowance for
accrued depreciation as evidenced by observed condition or
obsolescence present, whether arising from physical,
functional or economic causes. The fair value less cost of
disposal of the property, plant and equipment is classified as a
level 3 measurement.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

ME - BEKSE®

URFBENEFREEER RZZE—N
F+ZA=+—B REFEAARE
59,6310007L( = T — £ F: AR ¥
97,045,0007T) BIEF - BREFEA AR
59,029000t( = & — + F: AR ¥
74,701,000 7T) BB R i 28 LA I BR T H B
BARKAT5700T(ZE—LF: AR
#2,266,0007T) M E TR H T TRT
EAAEE/MNE TRITRENER (ERW
FE24(0)) °

RAFE  AEBEEDMEKEXRAE
TR ER RS » BER B AR % 139,251,000
TR EM s R EETER - g mE -
B LR EREEREEL RO SEA
E¥ 462,194,000 7T °

ARESRLNESERBERAENE  BE
LREREERZMSERBZME  BE R
RERIORA T ERAZHAEE ZAEK
RARFEREEDE - BB K REKA
fET - WAAINBR IR AT BER 2 (RIS REM
(T imEIME - RGBT ZRE)
FRERZEITE - R TERYME  BE
REBZHEREDERE=RGTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A IS RERM 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)

12. LEASE PREPAYMENTS 12. AEHAMNR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Cost: B
At 1 January n—H—H 83,202 106,861
Additions NE - 6,356
Disposal k=< - (30,015)
At31December Rt=A=t—-8A 83202
Accumulated amortisation RHEBRRE:
and impairment:
At 1 January n—A—H 7,888 6,799
Charge for the year FARZM 1,635 1,732
Impairment losses RIEEE 28,479 -
Disposal k= = (643)
At31Decemoer . RY=A=+—-H . 38002 - 7,888
Net book value: EERE
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 45,200 75,314
Represented by: Bp :
Current portion BNERER 1,017 1,664
Non-current portion FERNERER 2> 44,183 73,650
45,200 75,314

The lease prepayments represent costs of obtaining the land
use rights in respect of land located in the PRC and the
capitalised costs relating to dredging and leveling of land.

HEFANFIE RIS LN B L+
WEREMEENRAR  URBELHEZ
BT ERE AR

At 31 December 2018, land use rights with an aggregate A=
carrying amount of RMB19,200,000 (2017: RMB68,969,000)
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (see note 24(c)).

—\F+-A=+—H" RkELE
BARE19,200000L(ZFE—+EF : AR
5 68,969,000 70 ) By L fF A D AEE
FE FERITRVE I AEIE IR (R KT 5E24(0)) ©

HRIEMERBIRDR | 167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

13. NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR 13. WYX BERKEHIEAD
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND LEEERREA
EQUIPMENT
The amount mainly represented prepayments for construction ZEBFEECEIREREBFENR K
in progress and buildings. An analysis of non-current B - BB RZENIFBRBENRD T
prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment o
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\f§ S
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBET T

Prepayment for construction of EIEMR A RS A T R

manufacturing complex 9,031 13,245
Prepayment for other constructions and ~ E b2 kW% - BE K&

property, plant and equipment RERTERN R 5,298 21,358

14,329 34,603
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

ERE e e

mﬁ‘
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)
14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 14. REFE QTR
2018 2017
—E-N\f§ —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥®TT AREET T
Share of net assets L BEFE 24,716 24,434

Details of the Group’s interests in the associates are as follows:

REBRBE AR ERFHBNT

pa)

Proportion of

ownership interest

FrAERERLL)
Place of Group's
establishment effective Held by Principal
Name of associate and operation interest subsidiary activity
FHRED
BENTFEE B RESHE EREE sMBORRAE FEED
Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 45% 45% Trading of imported
(“Lvyuan”) H timber
IARE SHBERDE ([4IR]) BE®OARMN
Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy The PRC 45% 45% Research & development
Co., Ltd. (“Deliyuan”) H and sales of biomass
EEMEAHEEMERERAF energy
([13FR]) EME ARV R IEE
Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading The PRC 45% 45% Whole sale of forestry
Co., Ltd. ("Zhonglisheng”) H products and
EFRFEESERAOE building material
([HFIEED) WEEE D REM IR
Fujian Longyan Zhangping Weston Wood The PRC 45% 45% Manufacture and sale of
Component and Material Company i wooden products
Limited (“Weston Wood") AREMBUERHE
BREEETETHANEAREEME
BRLE (EHE])
Lvyuan, Deliyuan, Zhonglisheng and Weston Wood are 4E  BFE - R RBE N R AT E A A B

accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements.

BMARANRBEDEALR ©

RN ERERAT
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 14. REEE QTR ()
Summary of financial information of the associates: ZEENRINMIBEERBE
Lvyuan Deliyuan Zhonglisheng Weston Wood
i @R 2 B

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
2B\ —T+tF ZB-0\E “TtF ZB-N\§ "T+F ZB-\FE _TLF
RMB'000 RVMB000 RMB'000 RMB'OC0 RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000  RMB000
ABRRFR ARETL ARBTR ARMTI AEWTR ARWTL ARRTRT ARETI

Non-current assets FRBEE - 108 - - - - 3,467 2,991
Current assets nEEE 5,872 5968 9,986 9,987 10,019 10,121 13,874 4,440
Non-current liabilities FreaE = - = - - - - _
Current liabilities mEaR (186) (39) (1) @ (15) (119 (13,404) (4,304)
Net assets BEFE 5,686 6,041 9,985 9,985 10,004 10,006 3937 3127
Group's share of net assets A& BB L DA

of the associates EESE 2,559 2,719 4,493 4,493 4,502 4,503 1772 1,407
Revenue 'ON 1,606 3335 - 109 - 82 47,464 12,606
(Loss)/profit from continuing # &% ¢ (K1)

operations V4t (355) (376) (1) {7) (2) (1) 810 126

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

2 A BT SRR M s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

HihSmEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Available-for-sale equity securities (note a) a4t H &R AE 5 (Kt a)

— Unlisted equity securities, at cost — ELETIRAES - R AET - 2,495
Equity instruments measured at BRAFEF AL MEEEETEN
FVOCI (note a, b) BATA(KaFa, b) 3,267 -
3,267 2,495
(@  The above financial assets represent investment in equity @  bemEEENTERREEETEH

securities of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian
Province.

(b)  The equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

The dividend income received related to the equity
securities not included in the table above for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was RMB 461,000 (2017:
RMB354,000).

HWITIRITH R ARNEHILE o

PR AL E T A AT R 46 E AR AT
B ARME2EREIR  RESK
SERSZEEEBRBIE -

B EERRAFHEEOREBAR
AR 461000 (ZF—+tF : AR
#354,0007T) * WARFTA EXEHZEZ
T-N\F+-A=+—BLEFENE
1% o

R ERARAT
—B— N\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of

16. AHEB AT ERE

ERAMBRRNFEHINT - KRBT

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. RSN - PR BRI R RAR
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of FOF G
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ E{hRE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRTRBERT/
LFER BRI BIERAY EREFHEE EE ME IEXH
Green Oceans Investment Holdings  The British Virgin 10 shares of 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI") USD1 each
7 November 2011
Green Oceans Investment Holdings ~ EBELEE 10RER1ETHRR REER
Limited ((RERZES])
—E—F+—-AtAH
King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
Limited 5 August 2010 HK$1 each wooden products
A (B BRERAR Bk 10,000 HEPIER
—2-Z5)\ATH BR1ETHRKN
Fujian Zhangping Kimura The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Forestry Products Co. Ltd 17 December 1995 RMB380,000,000 sales of outdoor
(notes (i) and (iii)) wooden products
BREETIANMEBRAT HE AR EERHEPIRES
(Hz2 () % (i) —“ANEFTZATHRE  AREK380,0000007T
Zhangping Kimura Merry The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Engaged in projects of
Garden Wooden Structure 12 June 2010 RMB1,000,000 outdoor wooden
Design and Installation Co., Ltd. products including
(notes (ij) and (ii)) the provision of
design and
installation services
BEMANEEREARGERE HE FER FEPIRERIER
ZEBRAR (K )R (i) —T-ZFFAATZA AR 1,000,007 BERERR
ZERH

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

/\\/T\

B BHRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RIB AR RER (&)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of b INS)E
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ 33
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRTRBERET/
LFER B BIERAY EREFHEE -t ME IEEH
Merry Garden (Shanghai) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 24 February 2012 RMB1,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (iii)) through self-operated
retail shops
ZEFRE (L8 FEBRAA HE HRIEEN BREETEETE
(Wi (i) & (i) ZE-ZFZF=fmA  ARE1,0000007T BB
Merry Garden (Xiamen) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 14 November 2012 RMBS,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (iii)) through self-operated
retail shops
FEZR(EF)REERAA HE AER FREETEETE
(Wit (i) % (i) “E-ZE+-A1TMAE  ARE50000007T POMREE
Zhangping Merry Garden Import ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading of timber and
and Export Co. Ltd. 27 February 2013 RMB30,000,000 sales of outdoor
("MG Import and Export”) wooden products
(note (i) and (i)
BEMEBREELOERAR HE AR AMESREERIH
((ZEFREELD]) ZE-=FZA=++H  AKR¥30,0000007T R
(W () & i)
Merry Garden Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
(note (v)) 3 August 2016 HKS1 each
ZEREERBRAA Bk 1R ETARR Ramk
(Wt () —T-A"¥N\A=A
Merry Garden Biomass Energy Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited 10 October 2014 HK$1 each
ZEFEAENERRERERAR  BE 1RERETARR RamR
“E-WETATH
PRAEYERERAR

T\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B % G551

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

C UAABRHEZTR)

16. RIB A RIRER (&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company

Place and date of Particulars of KA

incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FE{hR
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities

BRTRBERT/

LFER B BIhERAY EREFHEE EE ME IEEH
Zhangping Merry Garden Biomass ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and

Energy Development Ltd.

(notes (i) and (iv))
ETTRBERRENERR

REERAR (W) R V)

Unicreed Holdings Limited

BNAAEEERAR

Unicreed Industry & Trade Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Unicreed
(China) Electronics Company
Limited) (notes (i) and( i)

BNRAIIEERA
(Wﬁ%mﬂlﬂ’éﬂ(qﬂ )%% RA

(e () % i)

Notes:

31 March 2014

hE

“2-WFZA=t-A

Hong Kong
20 January 2011
)

“F——F-A=1H

The PRC

10 June 2011

hE

—E——FXATH

RMB30,000,000

AMER
AE#30,000,0007

10,000 shares of
HK$5,653.39 each
10,000 %

R 5,653.39 B LA LD

Registered capital of
USD7,850,000

AR
7,850 000% 7

(i) These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the

PRC.

(if) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and

are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

(iii) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The

official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(iv) This entity is a limited liability company established in the PRC and is a

wholly-owned subsidiary of MG Import and Export.

(V) This entity is a limited liability company established in Hong Kong and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 G RN UAREEZTR)

17. DEFERRED TAXATION 17. EEBIE
(@) Deferred tax assets and liabilities @ ERRAHMELENRIEEE K
recognised =N
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARGEE P BRAERPEERRE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ERBEEE/(BFE)DHREHHD
position and the movements during the year are as ™
follows:
Fair value
Unrealised adjustments
gain/(loss) of equity
on PRC investment
Unrealised derivative dividend Impairment  through other
Deferred profits on financial  withholding Interest under comprehensive
income inventories instruments tax  capitalisation ECL model income Total
fi% R HARBREMA
FRE  IRBFER HERE R MERIRES
BEMA  KERAY  WE/(BR) BOR  HEERL  BRELEE ARERY @it
RMBO00 RMB000 RMBO0 RMB000 RMBO0 RMB000 RMBO0 RMB000

AEBTT AEBTR NRBTTL AESTT ARETTR AEETT AEBTT ARETR

Deferred tax arising from:  BERERS

At 1 lanuary 2017 RZE-t5-f-A 4591 5 (280) (1,707) (309) - - 230
Creditect(charged) to profi 0/ (hE) EER
orloss (note 78) (Hit7a) (290) - 1,958 - (3580) - - (1912
At31 December 2017 RZE-t§+-f=1-R 4301 5 1478 (1,707) (3,889 - - 3%
At January 2018 R=F-N\5-F-A 4301 5 1678 (1,707) (3889) - - ki)
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 B ]
£95252 - - - - - 871 (237) 634

A1 January 2018 (restated) RZF-\E-A-R

(@®5) 430 5 1,678 (1,70 (3889 871 (237) 1022
(Charged)/credited toprofitor — (418) /3t AlBER
loss (note 7i8) (i 76) (4301 3) (1,706) - 3889 0 - 163
Credited to other comprehensive s AEMREHA
income - - - - - - i vl
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+ZB=+-R - - @ (1,707) - 81 (116 (1020

PREYERBRAT | 175
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B G RN UAREEZTR)

17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 17. BB IE (2)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities b)) EERNELERIBEE K
recognised (continued) BEw
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial REEMEMRRRPEHENT ¢
position:
2018 2017
ZE—)\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBT T
Net deferred tax asset recognised in R 4R 4 BI SRR & P R
the consolidated statement of EERIBEEFE
financial position 831 5,984
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 744 BAFEIRIN& P #ERE
in the consolidated statement of REBIEBEFE
financial position (1.851) (5,596)
(1,020) 388
18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement @ REEVBRARFTHT
of financial position comprise: BEEE
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBT T
Raw materials RR# 165,793 174,856
Work in progress TR 34,915 29,298
Finished goods IR an 144,779 126,964
345,487 331,118

176 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

18. INVENTORIES (continued) 18. #FE®)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories b)) ERRBAXILFT AER
recognised as an expense and included in WEFEEESTET
profit or loss is as follows:
2018 2017
ZE-N\EF —E—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT AREFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &7 &R EEE 566,161 430,018

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. ESZREMEWRRIA

2018 2017
ZE—\EF T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Trade and bills receivables ZEEWERIA R EWEE 117,268 110,650
Trade receivable from associates FEWEEE N B E B 5RE 9.246 1,478
Less: Loss allowance B B (4,626) -
Total trade receivables %%ﬂguﬁz%&lﬁﬁ@%ﬁ 77777777777777 121,888 ”77”””171727,717278”
Prepayment for raw materials R BB 3R 71,134 63,927
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMITA 2,736 -
Amount due from a related company i) NG 71 67
Amounts due from associates JiE Ui Bt 8 N B FROB 1,973 3,968
Amount due from a director B — R EEHIA 30 -
Other receivables Hh pE U R IE 18,326 16,514
Less: Loss allowance B R RME (385) -
Totalother receivables AfemkEEes U ks
215,773 196,604
RREYIERAARA T

—E2-\FEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B % G551

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date
and net of loss allowances as of the end of reporting period, is

C UAABRHEZTR)

19.

B K EmBKE

WEIKERR/FHX

RIH (%)
TBEH T B 5 N E s UK

HER—FR

R|BERR  REZAMAMGREERE
B S RUGRIERE DT -

as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\f§ —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBTT
Within 1 month TMEAA 45,592 38,776
110 2 months 1Z=218A 25,581 25,738
2 to 3 months 2Z31EA 6,562 11,560
Over 3 months 31E A E 44,153 36,054
121,888 112,128

Trade receivables are normally due within 90 days to 180 days B 5 EUGRIE — A A3 R HHIRE 90

from the date of billing.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 G RN UAREEZTR)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The below table reconciled the impairment losses of trade and

19. EFREMEBERRIE %)
ENE SR R IR E 1R Y R

other receivables for the year: N
Trade
Trade receivables Amount
receivables  excluding  duefroma Amounts
of specific specific related  due from Other
debtors debtors  company  associates receivables Total
RE
RERBARN  GHEARIM [id4 44
RARASE HAEKSE RARLARE BEARRE  EHRESE )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETT ARETH
t 1 January 2017 R=Z—-+E-A-H - - - - - -
Impairment losses recognised ERERARERE
e s o o o S 343
Balance at 31 December 2017 REERHENE 2%
under 1AS 39 e S o3
TZA=T-AER 3493 - - - - 3493
Impact of initial application of BRERERAHREER
_FRSSmote20A0) RORMPE(EION) T LI 2 I L. 439
Balance at 1 January 2018 BEERIEREEZ R
under IFRS 9 RZZ-\§-A—-AH
&5 3493 3578 2 3 786 7862
Impairment losses recognised ERERIREBE
during the year - 1,048 - 3 (403) 642
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\#+-A=1-A 3493 4,626 2 - 383 8,504

HRIAEYERBRD A

—E2-\FEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 20. CiEEIEE
Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for IR T IRITHF R C AIERTTRA S B 3%
banking facilities issued by banks to the Group (see note 24(c)). HERITRLE AR (R EE 24(0)) ©

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. fﬁﬁﬁi%?\’féﬁxm L
(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the (@) o NN Eﬁ%%é@%/ﬁé A :ﬁb

consolidated statement of financial A&i*{gbﬁﬁ i G
position and consolidated cash flow 5718
statement comprise:
2018 2017
—E-N\FE T
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARKETT

Deposits with banks and other HRIT M H M &l
financial institutions BT 6,846 75,702
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERe 31,154 37,799
38,000 113,501

At 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of RMB27,462,000 (2017: RMB91,424,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of
the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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RZZ—NF+ZA=1+—08 " BH
AR #27,462,0000( —F —+ 4 :
AR®91,424,00070) IR LB S
EEMDIUARBE  WHRBEE
BRBPIFHARE - ARKEIWIER
BRALBHEE  HPEERESA
= BT A SNBSS AR ROk
FRATRR ] o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. RERBEEEY
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) BR B AT & F EL 48 & S B
cash generated from operations: FETHE -
2018 2017
—E—N\F e
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BtaF AR®TFT AREF T
Loss before taxation R ATEE (182,796) (38,203)
Adjustments for: BLAT S IEIEL A% -
Interest expense FIEFZ 6(a) 8,895 6,216
Depreciation of property, Y - REMERETE
plant and equipment 6(c) 33,733 23,756
Amortisation of lease prepayments & 78 (< 2k 4 6(c) 1,635 1,732
Amortisation of deferred income R FE N B 5 25 (1,163) (1,163)
Net foreign exchange loss HNE B 18 FE = 1,869
Changes in fair value of derivative ~ #7144 ® T A
financial instruments NFEE S 5(b) (190) 12,307
Interest income SN ON 5@) (797) (3,405)
Dividend income RISV ON 5@) (461) (354)
Net gain on disposal of HEDE  BEMEE
property, plant and equipment o 26 5E 5(b) (1) (105)
Gain on disposal of land use rights  H & + it {F FAEUES - (580)
Share of (profits)/losses of fE(REE N A CER),/
associates, net of tax 18 - FOBRFIA (282) 271
Impairment losses on property, W - BREKEERE
plant and equipment 139,251 2,323
Impairment losses on lease MEBRNFREEE
prepayments 23,263 -
Impairment of trade and other 2 5 & H b FE MR IE
receivables A - 3,493
Expected credit loss on financial CREEBHEEER
assets 642 -
Changes in working capital: BEEEE
Increase in inventories FEIEN (14,369) (11,618)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 R HAb EUGRIA
other receivables (), E (2,131) 47,963
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 REAMEMNFE
other payables CRA),/ (4,432) 3816
Increase in contract liabilities AHAEEE N 23,133 -
Cash generated from operations REFEBEERE 23,930 48,318

TREMEZERERAE | 181
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ESREMENSTIE

2018 2017
—E-N\f§ S
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ANEBT T
Trade payables B HENRA 12,018 3,769
Receipt in advance FWHIA - 10,094
Amounts due to associates FENE & A RIFRIA 23,276 22,416
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIA 2,546 12,307
Amount due to a director et —REEHA 12 12
Amount due to a related company FE BB A R IR 283 283
Other payables and accruals (note /) Hth (S FRIE R T B A (MaE 1) 19,165 15,272
57,300 64,153

Notes: HiaE -

Balance mainly represents salaries, wages, bonus and other accrued
benefits, and payables for the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

Al of the above balances are expected to be settled within one
year or repayable on demand.

(@ A maturity analysis of the trade payables is

BT EREEe ITE - TAKRHM
EETRMARBEME - BERZHE
TR

A L EHTERT R — FRENRIRE

@) BEZEMRENIHAED

as follows: M
The maturity analysis of the trade payables balance is as E S ENFIBLANIEA ST
follows: NS
2018 2017
ZE-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Due within 1 month or on demand V& A R E B E N SR BskE R 9,669 3,169
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 11& A 1218 3@ A A B 83 2,349 600

12,018 3,769

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. ENEE

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

—F-)N\%F —T-N\F —T—tF

+=-A=+—AH —A—8 +=-—A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFTT ARBEFIT

Contract liabilities AEHBE 23,133 10,094 -
The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of AHABERERSHRIBERTKE
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations HNEANRZERERE ~EEEHSER

ERTERBEHNEENRSERHRNAEE
AEFPEBE MR AR -

that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The
Group expects the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue when
the Group transfers goods to the customer.

The contract liabilities represented receipt in advance from EHABEEBREANBZEFEREMNE
customers for goods that have not yet been transferred to the PRE RZE-—NFERZZT—tF+=
customers. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the contract A=+—H AHEBEBEXZREHERE
liabilities mainly included the receipt in advance received from MU EIWIRWFIE - HE_Z-N\F+=
sales of wooden products. The contract liabilities increased by A=1+—HBILFE 6H8EEMARE

RMB13,039,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018
primarily due to the increase in sales with receipt in advance.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all brought-forward
contract liabilities at the beginning of the financial period were
fully recognised as revenue.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

13,039,000 7T * F Z RIS TEUGRIEIE IN
FrE -

BE-_Z-\F+-A=t—RALFE"
MBI E AR A M RED A BIE
BRUA -

HRERANEESHEBREEN KX

RN ERERAT
—E\EEH

183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 23. BHEBE®
Sales deposits HEZS
When the Group receives a deposit before the delivery of EAEBEXINEY ZAIREIZS R - &
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a EHRENRBEKELESNEE  B2®
contract, until the revenue recognised exceeds the amount of ROWABBREEE - HERESNEHE
the deposit. The amount of the sales deposit, if any, was (B R EACEREZRFREMmE

negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

2018
—E-N\FE
RMB'000
AR®TT
At 1 January m—H—H 10,094
Amounts included in contract liabilities that was RENER BN SN B EATR
recognised as revenue during the year (Note) HIRIE (FFEE) (10,094)
Cash received in advance of performance and BRIBER R RFERIL RER AW
not recognised as revenue during the year "R E 23,133
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 23,133
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method HiiF - AEBBERERBR T EREERE 155K

and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018. Upon the adoption
of IFRS 15, amounts previously included in “Trade and other payables”
(note 22) have been reclassified to “Contract liabilities” (note 23).

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

B ERR W

/\VT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 G RN UAREEZTR)
24. BANK LOANS 24,

(@) At 31 December 2018, the bank loans were
repayable as follows:

RITER

@ MRZE-—N\F+-A=1—

B - 7AEE

BRIRTTERIOT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\FE B
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFIT

Within 1yearorondemand —THAMs#EER 9152 233,187
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA - -
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRFR = -
91,152 233,187

(b) At 31 December 2018, the bank loans were ) R=E—NE+—-A=+—
secured as follows: B BHEFRITERDAT -
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —FE—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFIT

Bank loans (note 24(c)) RITE (M5t 24(C)

— secured — B 91,152 232,005
— unsecured — E = 1,182
91,152 233,187

RRAEYERERA T

T\



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

2 A B TSR 2 M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B G RN UAREEZTR)

24. BANK LOANS (continued)

24. ﬁﬂﬁﬁ,‘%’\(%)

(c) The amounts of banking facilities available © —E-)\Ft+ZA=1T—
to the Group and the utilisation at 31 E K% E AT A RTT R
December 2018 are set out as follows: ERESRABEREIAT

2018 2017
—E—\F —T
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARMETFTT

Banking facilities available AIERMIRITRLE
— secured — B 237,200 394,939
— unsecured — = 1,182
237,200 396,121

Amounts utilised BEI A

— bank loans —RITER 91,152 233,187

186 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

B BHRRM T

24. BANK LOANS (continued)

(c) The amounts of banking facilities available

to the Group and the utilisation at 31
December 2018 are set out as follows
(Continued).

The secured banking facilities were secured by the
following assets with carrying values as follows:

C UABEHEZTR)

24. SRITER(#&)

RZTE-\F+-A=1—
B - RS A A IRTT Al
EREFHHBREHNGOT
(%)
BHEMRITREU T EENREE
(S

2018 2017
—B-\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Pledged deposits (note 20) BiE TR (FEE20) 18,084 78,261
Buildings (note 117) 1’ (i 11) 59,631 97,045
Plant and machinery (note 11) W Ak Es (Mt 11) 59,029 74,701
Construction in progress (note 11) FEEIR(MF11) 4,757 2,266
Lease prepayments (note 12) AaE’EaR(HEE12) 19,200 68,969
160,701 321,242

During 2018 and 2017, all of the Group’s banking facilities RZE-NFER_ZT—+tF  £EE

were subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

The Group has sixteen secured bank loans with carrying
amounts of RMB91,152,000 at 31 December 2018 with
maturity date during 2019. The loan agreements contain
certain covenants on profit for which the Group did not
meet the profit making requirement during year 2018.

The Company complies with its obligation to pay and will
repay the principals when they fall due. The Bank
considered it not necessary at present to exercise its
rights given by the loan agreements upon the Group not
meeting the abovementioned convenants prior to the
respective maturity dates of the loans in 2018.

Except for the above, the Company has fulfilled the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities during 2018
and 2017. Details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 32(b).

Eﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂéﬁﬂx@ﬁéﬁﬁmﬂ%%
A IEERER —RERHE TR
HFTARIR - MASEER RZL - B2
ERNEERARERER - A%E
JE MBI R LB T A RERA

REEHRAR T —ALFREHH+<
SHEFRTER  HREEN=
—NFE+ZA=+—"HAEAREKE
91,152,0007T - ERipEEH & T
RAEBERER =T — N\FFBPEK
KB AFIERRELY -

>

ARRETENREELBRAESD
HRETEE BEASEERN_Z
—NEREREREREIH A BIERK
AREA) - BIRTTR A B A HATE
BRI T AR o

BRruESN R-ZE-NFER_F
—tF  ARFREEKEBRIEE
MRK - ERASEEERBESR
e P 1 B BT 2 32(D)

RUEMERARAF
—E\EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
25. DEFERRED INCOME 25, IEFEW A
The movements of deferred income are as follows: RIEWAZE 0T -
2018 2017
—E—N\E§ —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTIT
Balance at 1 January n—A— Bk 17,201 18,364
Government grant recognised in profit RERXRERSEMIAR
or loss as other revenue (note 5(a)) BTt & (M52 5(@) (1,163) (1,163)
Offset against impairment of property, HIEMZE - BB KR AR
plant and equipment and HAEENRERE
lease prepayments (16,038) -
Balance at 31 December N+ A=+—BHm&EH = 17,201
Represented by: Bp :
Current portion BIHAEL = 1,163
Non-current portion JERNEREL - 16,038
- 17,201

26.

Deferred income represented government subsidies that
compensated the Group for the cost of its land use right and
the cost of infrastructure development which are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
assets.

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching
to these government grants.

DEBENTURES

The Group has entered into agreements with two individual
third parties issuing unsecured debentures with principal
amounting to HK$20,000,000. The debentures are bearing
interest at 3% per annum, unsecured and repayable on 29
August 2022.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea
& B &y R M aE e

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5R 4

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details

C UABEHEZTR)

27.

BREREE
BREEBK - AQF

X EERKRE
BRAEER
B RB IR

7 E B Y] K B R

REBEFHONFIRERNEDFEN

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of T
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HEZEOHEH
The Company b /N
Share Share  Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
12 BnAR ERGEE RiER gaaa
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  AR®TT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 RIE-tE-f-AMKE 20,987 624,211 68,862 (22259 691,801
Changes in equity for 2017: “I-tEpHaEn:
Loss for the year FRER - - - (6,372) (6,372)
Other comprehensive income En2EbE - - (48,436) - (48,436)
Total comprehensive income for the year — ER2ENEAE - - (48,436) (6372) (54,808)
Issue of shares upon subscription REREIRG 4557 54,521 - - 59,078
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZS—-tE+ZA=+-R
as originally (RF)) 25,544 678,732 20,426 (28,631) 696,071
Initial application of IFRS 9 (note 2(C)A() Mk RN RREEE
F9R (M 2040) - - - (31,889) (31,889)
Balance at 1 January 2018 RERMEREENER
under IFRS 9 ~Z-)\5-f-A&K 25,544 678732 20,426 (60,519) 664,183
Changes in equity for 2018: ZE-\EniEaR:
Loss for the year ERER - - - (5,297) (5,297)
Other comprehensive income Et2mEbE - - 3182 - 3182
Total comprehensive income for the year — ER2ENHLE - - 3182 (5,297) 2659
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZ-\&+ZA=+-H
iof3:3 25,544 678,732 52,252 (65,816) 690,712
RREYIERERAT

—E\EEH
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k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

27. EX - BEERRKRE @)

(b) Share capital (b) A
Authorised and issued share capital RERDBEITEA
2018 2017
—Z-\E I o3
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RiA®A &8 POEE Ex
('000) HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000
T Ti#x T TiEx
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at R—A—AR+=ZA=+-H
1 January and 31 December SBRAEBETLHTAR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2018 2017
ZE-0\E —E—t%
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BRiz8E &8 R #E Ex
(‘000) HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000
T TR Tk TiER
Ordinary shares, issued and HiER - BORBR
fully paid:
At 1 January ®—A—H 3,088,335 30,883 2,573835 25,738
Issue of shares upon subscriptionon  A=Z—+E=-A+H
10 February 2017 (note () DEBBIRG (W7 () = = 914,500 5,145
3,088,335 30,883 3,088,335 30,883
Equivalent to (RMB'000) BERARETT) 25,544 25,544
Notes: M :

(i) On 10 February 2017, an aggregate of 514,500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were conditionally issued to not less than six
placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.13 per share. The net
proceeds would be retained for research and development
expenditure to enhance research and product competitiveness of
the Group and as general working capital of the Group. The shares
issued rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.
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RZE-—ttF-_A+H A&#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
AT RAM e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

)

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(y).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

27. EX - BEERBRE (®)
() REEHEENE

@

(i)

(iii)

R4 EE

P tn i B AR M It HE
SLEIT AR R PTUCER PR A5
FIAZ EHERR -

RERSHEARE ARQA
Petn i ERARNED R HE D IR
FTARBRBRIR - HEREERS
DIRACE AR - ANRRZAR
MEN —RERBRES BN
&7 o

BE 5

BE 5B B R A A R LASME
DR E¥RERHE B KR
RIFEENMEINEZE - &
FREREM T2 AENE
AR BEHE ©

EEME
BREBNERERBILAER
TR B AR R P BIAR Bl AR
VAR AR 22 B FE o B AR 52 #9 FfT J
NREIMERERMAETT X
CEEEEESE -

o B B BT B A R ZE % 10% Y
BREEN(EDRETEE
ARAIRRPIEE) E— KX
TR BEERBEREIN
BAMS0% AL - ERERFE
AR IRBE AT

—ROAEREAT AR BERTE
FEBR(ME)  AAEHmE
BRI EABERERNG
BRSERNEME AR 25% -

PREYERBERAR

—B— N\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

()

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB665,168,000 (2017: RMB670,527,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed no final dividend (2017: proposed no final
dividend).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances and short-term bank loans that
arise in the course of ordinary business are not regarded
by the Group as capital. On this basis, the amount of
capital employed by the Group at 31 December 2018
were RMB931,829,000 (2017: RMB1,255,417,000).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of certain covenants as disclosed in note 24(c),
neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements in
either prior or current year.
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27. EX - BEERE (®)

(d)

A 9k

A AARRERSEEAD IR EHEE
2 AR 665,168,000 T ( —E—+
£ AR#670,527,0007T) °

PR AR - EE L R HIR
BRERE (ZF—LF  TRBR
TARERE) ¢

BEARERE

AEBEBEANTZHIEEE BHE
R FEE UL A EE G S ARG TE B i
BIRAERARERE - REAEE
STIBECEMEE N - IAMEEEE AR
RAREIH KL AHEREE BT RF

S o

E\

REBBER] EEABIEMBR
wmED o AEBE—REBKBIEFE
ERE B R ERIRTTERTEE
RBER B EE AEER-FT
—N\F+ZA=t+—BEBENEARS
%A A R #931,829,000t( = &
—+t4  AREE1,255,417,0007T) °

ARETRRERLEE  EHES
RBREBR R - S E R LA
FEBMEEREEERRRFAS
POEE RARNE - A A E
BHR S B A AT R -

BRAERKE 200 MR BENE TR
MERTTEESN  NBEFERAF
B ARBRAFMERRHBEE
HMERIEINE AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(@)

RIS R M Rt o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 G RN UAREEZTR)

28. COMMITMENTS 28. i
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 @ RUEFHFEETBEHRERAR
December 2018 not provided for in these ERBEAENR -2 —N\F
consolidated financial statements were as +_A=Z+t—HHKEE
follows: R EANAENT
2018 2017
ZE—)\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFT
Contracted for (note () EHENCEIO) 23,374 26,228
23,374 26,228
Note: Hiat -
(i) Capital commitments are mainly related to construction of 0} BAREEFEARBAEFEAN LSRR
factories for Zhangping Kimura and Unicreed and purchase of B MRE A R B AR -
equipment.
At 31 December 2018, the total future b)) R—E—NF+-_A=+—
minimum lease payments under non- B BEARAERTEEM
cancellable operating leases in respect of TH A REHGEHAE T
rental of offices and retail shops are BEBHARRFERERNK
repayable as follows: WEEA R
Operating lease commitments as lessee REHEAE (FEREARBRAN)
2018 2017
bt 2 18- 2 —ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Within 1 year —FR 303 398
After 1 year but within 5 years —ERERAER 281 86
584 484

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five
years, with an option to renew when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases include contingent
rentals.

BO—RONEBP—FERFIE
MEREBERA R ENERR A -
ZERHBTRERAER -

RN ERERAT
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

28. COMMITMENTS 28. &g

(b) At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of
rental of offices and retail shops are
repayable as follows: (continued)

Operating lease commitments as lessor

The Group leases out certain held for own use properties
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of 1 year. None of these leases include contingent
rental. As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum
lease payments receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of investment properties are

()

N_E—-—N\FTH=1T—
H BENAERTEEMN
SR PRI REEKEELE N
BEENREFEHEERNK
MEELIOT : ()
EEAERE(ERHEA)

AEBELEE TRELEHORES
ArYE - ZFHONBHRRA—
FRTREHAEE R2T—
FT-A=+—H RIAATREERgE
HAT A BB EUE R R K&K
HENREENT

as follows:
2018 2017
—E—)\f =+t
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Within 1 year —&R 476 66
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFER = -
476 66
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

b2 & B S R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in Group's liabilities arising

from financing activities.

29. MEETHELENEBZHIR

TREAAREREEDELHA LS

fEe
Bank loans  Debentures Total
BMITH™ "% #st
(note 24) (note 26)
(Kt 24) (Kizt26)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 R-E—N\E—HA—H 233,187 16,790 249,977
Cash flows REnE (142,035) (508) (142,543)
Non-cash flows FRERE
— Interest expenses — FMERX - 527 527
— Effects of foreign exchange —EH £ - 811 811
At 31 December 2018 RIZ—I\F
+—-RA=+—H 91,152 17,620 108,772
Note: The cash flows from borrowings make up the net amount of proceeds B EEABARERT  KEEZXNBEARERRE

from borrowings and repayments of borrowings in the consolidated
statements of cash flows.

ERAERBFEREREN -

RN ERERAT
e
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k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed in notes 8,
9, 14, 19 and 22 of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following significant related party

transactions during the years presented.

(@)

During the years presented, the directors are of the view
that related parties of the Group include the following

entity:

Name of party
FABS B8

Name and relationship with related parties

C UAABRHEZTR)

30. EXEBAEXRS

Bt S 4R A M IERERMIES - 914 19K
22 BT BRI BAER 5 A RN - REBRFTR
FEEEN T HERBE TS -

(@) FEEETT &% & LR EE 0T A

EZRES
REREE  EFRA -
BT R TSI R -

REEE

Relationships
Ff%

Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism
Development Company Limited* (“Jiupengxi”)
B MAMSRERREERERETAR ([ NBE]D)

Green Sea Capital Limited

Green Sea Capital Limited

Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd.*
IGRE 5 BR AT

Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy Co., Ltd.*
BEamEMNREMEIRBRAF

Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading Co., Ltd.*
EFPFEESERAR

Fujian Longyan Zhangping Weston Wood Component
and Material Company Limited*
BRARETELRMEREEMEERAR

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The *

official name of these related parties is in Chinese.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.
REEEHINLEQNT - REERBANFIES -

A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.

REZEFNLERR - REERARFES -

An associate of the Group.
REE 2B AR

An associate of the Group.
REE 2B AR

An associate of the Group.
REE 2B AR

An associate of the Group.

HWHEXBEEHRSS -
HYERE BRI

ZEEs



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea

o

30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Significant related party transactions

AU THREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 G551

C UABEHEZTR)

30. EXEEBAERS (®)

Particulars of significant related party transactions during

the years presented are as follows:

(0)

BREBARS
FrREENERE 2250 EW0
T

Sales of wooden products to Lvyuan

Sales of wooden products to Deliyuan

Sales of wooden products to Zhonglisheng
Sales of wooden products to Weston Wood
Other revenue from Weston Wood

Purchase of raw materials from Weston Wood

MAOREE RB TR

MEFREE R
A R B E R
MEHTEHE R B G
2R B BT A A
TR SR R R

2018 2017
—E—N\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBT T

622 1,757
18,363 5,365
178 321
48,098 9,622

The directors confirm that the above sales and purchase
transactions are entered into with trading terms similar

to those with third parties.

Amounts due (to)/from related companies

©

EEWHR - LAEERZTARKE
BB =R RUR B IERETAL »

F& (1), W BB HSE 2 R 5RIR

RMB'000
ARBT T
Amount due to Jiupengxi Bt BsERIE
Balance at FEERTA
— 1 January 2017 ——E—+tF—A—H (283)
— 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 ——Z—+F+-HA=1+—H
;EZZ—-NF—H—H (283)
— 31 December 2018 ——Z—N\F+=-A=+—8H (283)
Maximum balance outstanding SISP N
— during 2018 —R-E—N\F (283)
— during 2017 —RZE—+F (283)

The amount due to a related company was arisen from
normal sales transactions. It was unsecured, interest-free
and expected to be settled according to credit term

which is similar to that with third parties.

FEN AR A TR IE TR E — R E
5 o HEFBAEER 28 REH
%mﬁﬁﬁ%_E@MMF =R
i -

RN ERERAT
—E\EEH
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30. EXBEHAERS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

(c) Amounts due (to)/from related companies ) JFE(R) UkFEE N 5518
(Continued) (#)

RMB'000
AREET T
Amount due from Green Seas fElly Green Seas Capital Limited
Capital Limited b
Balance at EER
— 1 January 2017 ——Z—+F—-H—H -
— 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 ——Z—+F+=-A=+—HK
- )\&—H—H 67
— 31 December 2018 ——ZT-N\E+-A=+—H 71
Maximum balance outstanding BRAREEESR
— during 2018 —RZZE-N\F 71
— during 2017 —RIE—+F 67
The amount due from a related company was unsecured, EU BB ARIRIEAEER - 28K
interest-free and repayable on demand. WERERE -

(d) Key management personnel remuneration d FEZEEEAEH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBEFTZEREASTHI(BEN
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’'s S RMIFINRIEEMNE AR A
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest EERATHEESFEENFTIE)NT
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Short-term employee benefits RHESET 1,891 2,572

Retirement scheme contributions R EIER 20 27
1,911 2,599

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see BEHEMIDEATEINA] (R

note 6(b)). 6(0)) °

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to ) BEXRZEAZ EmiRE]

connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions fall under LB R ST B LR AIE

the definition of connected transactions or non-exempt VUAEFMATHNEEIHHNTEERR

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the MER S o

Listing Rules.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

31. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND . REHEINEMEER T
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHNE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial AEEeBmTANEABELRAFENT ¢
instruments are as follows:

2018 2017
ZE-N\E =+
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables: B R EW
Trade and other receivables %Z%&EMJEH&Z,T iz} 141,903 132,677
Pledged deposits BEHEBIFH 18,084 78,261
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEY 38,000 113,501
Financial assets at fair value through EE AL AN FEGAEM

other comprehensive income: TEW w22 EEE
Equity investments BARIEE 3,267 -
Available-for-sale investments: AHHERE -
Equity investments A E = 2,495
Financial assets at fair value A FEGABRzHLHEE

through profit or loss:
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMIA 2,736 -
Financial liabilities eMAR
Amortised costs: B -
Trade and other payables Z 5 R E MR FIE 54,754 64,153
Bank loans IRITER 91,152 233,187
Debentures BE% 17,620 16,790
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEGABzHLHEE

through profit or loss:
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 2,546 12,307

PRAENRRERAT | 199
—E-\FEHR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32.

VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group only
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
usually requires upfront payment for sales of goods to
new customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letter of credit issued by financial
institutions or by wire transfer for certain customers with
good trading history. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all new customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and are also performed on existing
customers on a periodic basis. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group offers 90 days of credit to export
sales customers with good trading history and offers 180
days of credit to the existing domestic sales customers.
Generally, debtors with significant overdue balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5R 4

N e

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continuea)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2018,
5% (2017: 5%), of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and 13%
(2017: 32%), was due from the five largest customers.

The Group applies the simplified and general approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables and 12-month expected
credit loss provision for other receivables, amount due
from a related company and amounts due from
associates.

C UABEHEZTR)

32. sRIABEERAFE®)

(@)

EERERE @)
AEEMEENEERR  FEZE
BEPHENSEBMTE  MIIERE
BEPASEMTESENER - B
I EAEEEEHEREFPHEANRR
B BELERESETHNEERR - ©

Z-)\F+ZA=F+—H EBESHK
ﬁmﬁw RIERER A 5% (— T —+
F :5%) AIEBASEESEREFHR
1B M13% (ZF—+t4F : 32%) 8l &
FEW A REFHFIE

RE B E MR K — MR ITER B
BRELENEIORMRENALEE
ERGHRRYE - BRMBREENS
OEAFEAE ZEUKIENZ TR
HIES IR S EL A ORROR - FEURERR
Bt N A SRR N MBS 2 1 B SRR K
12 ATEHEEEERYE -
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A R RE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) (@) =ERRk#)
The following table provides information about the TREHNBFERERR _Z—NF
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade FTZA=+—HHEBZEUGIE - H
receivables, other receivables, amount due from a fth FEUCFRIE ~ FE U B Bk X B AR IE I B
related company and amounts due from associates as at Y A RIRIEREERER RIEHRE
31 December 2018: BEBZER
Gross
carrying Loss

amount allowance

Expected excluding excluding
loss rate specific specific
(%) debtors debtors
FTEERE TEEWE

FHERE BEEREN FERREH
(%) TRE{ERE i g
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARE®ETT

Trade receivables B HERIE
Current BN HA 0.82% 90,319 (741)
Less than 1 month past due wH D 1E A 2.27% 9,775 (222)
1to 3 months past due BH1E3EA 6.12% 5,191 (318)
More than 3 months but less than 3 31 A LA _E18 5
12 months past due 1218 A 12.43% 17,115 (2,127
More than 12 months past due  #HF12{& A A £ 29.61% 4114 (1,218)
126,514 (4,626)
Other receivables Hti B RIE 3.04% 12,5974 (383)
Amount due from a related YRR A FIRIE
company 3.04% 71 )
Amounts due from BB E X FIRIE 3.04% i —*
associates
* Less than RMB1,000 * R AR 1,0007T
# The balance excluded prepaid expenses. # EHRBRBETBREENMAX -
" The balance excluded prepayment to associates for raw materials. i BHBRBETBERBLS AT NREME

EOBEER PN
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEAREENR AFEE®)
VALUES (continued)

Credit risk (continuea)

In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade
receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as
they possess shared credit risk characteristics. They have
been grouped based on the days past due.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure to
make payments within 180 days from the invoice date
and failure to engage with the Group on alternative

FEERR @

Wit REHEEEEN - 25 EUHK
YRR B HE F B R T B AR
ARARITIE - DEROMRUE

11548 -

B P RN FERN EES IR AT YK
B T LAMSH (BNBUB#ERR) © ReE B %
SHEE 180 B AN RERAAEE
PR AR A R AN SREBD 1R 75

payment arrangement amongst other are considered EE IR TEEAN Bl FRIBRIHEIE o
indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was RZZE—N\F—A—HA EREHR
recognised only when there was objective evidence of géﬂﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁﬂf i 2R B 5 18
impairment (see note 2(m)A(ii)). At 31 December 2017, (ZBIMIEE2AMAG) « K=F—+F
trade receivables of RMB3,493,000 was determined to be toA=t— E EBBBHAAR

impaired. Th . vsis of trade debtors that 3,493,000 T C #EE R IRME ° I &
impaired. The ageing analysis of trade debtors that were B U 1 B 2B B A

not considered to be impaired was as follows: PARNE
2017
—E—+F
RMB'000
AEBTT
Neither past due nor impaired B 48 B R AR R (B 90,005
Less than 1 month past due BELR1EA 6,223
1to 3 months past due prng= N IENCR () 1,542
More than 3 months but less EHEA3ME A LA EE AR 1218 A
than 12 months past due 9,587
More than 12 months past due BEI12 @A A & 4,771
Amounts past due 78 HA R IE 22,123
112,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

AU THREM T

C UAABRHEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose it to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group'’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at 31 December 2018 of the Group's and the
Ccompany'’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company are required to settle these liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea
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C UABEHEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. €®lEKREER AFE @

VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) b)) mEBESRERR @
2018
k-2t

Within More than More than Total
1year 1yearbut 2yearshut contractual Carrying
oron less than less than undiscounted amount at
demand 2 years 5years cash flow 31 December
—EnE BE-%F BA=E AHRER MZA=T-A
REX BYRZE BOREE HERESH R E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AB%TT ARBTT AERTT ARRTT
Bank loans RAER 92,263 - - 92,263 91,152
Debentures &5 526 526 18,575 19,627 17,620
Trade and other payables BAREMENTE 54,754 - - 54,754 54,754
147,543 526 18,575 166,644 163,526

2017
S 2

Within More than More than Total
1 year 1year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
oron less than lessthan  undiscounted amount at
demand 2years 5 years cashflow 31 December
—FR% HE—F RAME STOARER M ZA=TH
BEX BAOR@E BIREF  RENELEHE MEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTL ARBTT AREFTT ARBTTL
Bank loans RAER 236,347 - - 236,847 233,187
Debentures &% 676 504 18,130 19,310 16,790
Trade and other payables BAREMENTE 64,153 - - 64,153 64,153
301,676 504 18,130 320,310 314,130

PREYERBRAF | 205
—ZE - \FER
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k2 & B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

C UAABRHEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. €®lEKREER A FE @)

VALUES (continued)
() Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by

management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s total borrowings at 31 December

€ IR B
AEENFIRRRTEREEH - 1%
LB RE R BAOEKS
A EE A IR S R B R AR R A
TEAERG - MEREFES - A
£ B8 R R AR BN T () °

>

M FEAMR
FRHTIR-F—/\E+-H
=+ BAREERLEOT

2018: LR -
2018 2017
ZZ-)\E “T—+F
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERfE &8 ik %
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARBTT AREFL
Fixed rate borrowings: ERE#H :
RMB, EUR and USD AR¥ - BTEET 1.35%-5.12% 91,152 0.66%- 163,941
bank loans RITER 5.58%
Unsecured debentures B % 3.13% 17,620 3.13% 16,790
Variable rate horrowings: iz 8 {2 :
RMB, EUR and USD ARE BTk = = 1.31%— 69,246
bank loans ZTRITER 7.27%
Total net borrowings el ] 108,772 249,977
Net fixed rate borrowings as B &SR E
a percentage of total net EBRFENES L
borrowings 100% 72%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

() Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/ decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/ increased the Group's profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately RMB Nil
(2017: RMB589,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to remeasure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s
profit after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis at 31 December 2017 has been performed
on the same basis.

C UABEHEZTR)

32. sRIABEERAFE®)

€ HEREF @

(i)

BREDN
RZE-NEFE+ZA=+—
H: EMAEBEHRBETE
WBERT  FIREE AT
PEI00E E At 2 E A S
B B BR B R 5 T R AR B s
LENIANREZ T (ZF
—tF : AR¥589,0007T © #&
= ) E At 3D G X SR
M E -

L SRRE DT AR E R
Beiig s (RREEN) B E
AR E S - BURE TR
R 2 2 A R o B ) A SR
ER#E WCAREHE
RE B LN S A
REFEAEEHER A FEMNEX
RENZSeRITA - BiAE
B3R IR A R A 2
BHMAETAEANRERE
MERBME @ HARESERKRHR
M (R ERF) WEFE(
B AR 2 8 i A A R0 A
BXHHBAEL G - R
E—tF+-A=1T—HB &
DITERAREEETT -
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The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in
RMB, USD, EURO and AUD, currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk associated
with the bank borrowings as the Group's borrowings are
denominated in RMB, USD, HKD and EURO.

During the years presented, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts with major state-
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to
mitigate against currency risk on receivables
denominated in USD, HKD and EURO. All of the forward
exchange contracts have maturities of less than one
year.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had foreign currency
forward contracts with their fair values recognised as
derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB2,736,000
(2017: RMB Nil) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB2,546,000 (2017: RMB12,307,000) and
are included within “Trade and other receivables” (note
19) and “Trade and other payables” (note 22)
respectively. The changes in fair value of the foreign
currency forward contracts were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 5(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EEe

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk

N
Y

5 LB
AEERHNEERER  TE2AUE
BIEERUINEERENER (A
R¥ - X7T BRUTRRTT) RHEMH
& NREE (EERMEOR - B HRIR
MIREEH) MITENEERER -

\

MR AEEOERTTAARE - X
7T BTURETEHE - ELAKE IR
EERIRITRERERNE RS -

PN A » 7852 B S o B ) K Y [
BIRITAIINEEHIEHNEAARE
MARRELASETT ~ BT RBUTFHERE
WEERH B ER - FTAEMINES
PR RIS R —F AR -

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H &&
EINE RN ATFERITES R
TEA(EBE) AR®¥2736000T(=F
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
31 December 2018 to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the
end of reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of the
entities with functional currency other than RMB
into the Group's presentation currency are
excluded.

The Company does not have any significant
financial assets or liabilities denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency and it
is not exposed to significant currency risk.

C UABEHEZTR)

32. sRIABEERAFE®)

(d)

P
=

M

R B ()

E¥ER

TRFINAEBR T —N\F
+7H:+_E.§\%§L/{UJL%
B AN E T EAEH ER
ERREENBEMEENE
KR o RAEEY - B
AARKESR - 5 A #Rs 81
ERERFERE - HERFUA
REELIMNOTIGE E KT BR R E
BUBREBRENTEENE
P EHE EERZERERIFRIN o

ARBABEFREREBEE
HABEAEDREEEAINNE
BatE TEAXEAEER
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2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continvea
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B G RN UAREEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) d) SRR @)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (iy EHERE)
2018
2-0\§
usb Euros AUD CHF JPY RMB
£ BT an BLikE Al AE#

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERBTRT ARWTR ARWTR AERTRT ARBTRT ARKTR

Trade and other receivables 45 REMEREE 49,302 = 5,804 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 9,733 116 58 1 1 292

Pledged deposits BEAER 4,669 - - - - -

Bank loan BTER (6,952) - - - - -

Trade and other payables B 5 R AR R (28,958) = - - - -
Gross exposure arising from BRIEERAE

recognised assets and liabilities ELNEREE 27,794 116 5,862 1 1 292

2017
ZE—tF
usb Euros AUD CHF PY RMB
e 29 AT RS BE ARE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR

Trade and other receivables E 5 LA ERE 33,587 - 4,351 - - 101
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 40,709 184 1447 - 1 217
Pledged deposits BHEAER 21,563 13,849 - 40,849 - -
Bank loan BAER (17,107) (62,418) - - - -
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFE (11,159) - (1) - - -
Gross exposure arising from ERREERAE

recognised assets and liabilities ELNEREE 67,593 (48,385) 5797 40,849 1 318
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEBREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continuea) d) SRR @)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) HREDIN
The following table indicates the instantaneous TEBRTAH RS
change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained FHBERT  AEBMNKREE
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to i F) (R AR B i F)) B R 2 BB
which the Group has significant exposure at the ERIFESE) (REBEER I
end of the reporting period had changed at that BHRZENRR) MEED
date, assuming all other risk variables remained BN B o A E Mo
constant. Other components of equity would not TEZINEIEREBHNTE -
be affected by changes in the foreign exchange
rates.
2018 2017
—E-\f —2—+tF
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax and inforeign  aftertaxand
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
E3:8: ¥t BRA R
SHEER REZEF INEE RRBEM
I#/(F®) ER/(FB) EH/(TR) EAH/(TH)
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
usb e 5% 1,182 5% 2,873
(5)% (1,182) (5% (2,873)
EURO o 5% 5 5% (2,056)
(5)% (5) (5)% 2,056
AUD RIT 5% 250 5% 246
(5)% (250) (5% (246)
CHF I TERD 5% = 5% 1,736
(5)% - (5)% (1,736)
RMB against HK$ ARERAET 5% 12 5% 13
(5)% (12) (5)% (13)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after
tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2017 has been
performed on the same basis.

(e) Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group's products include, fir and pinewood. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw
materials which are influenced by the global market as
well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could
adversely affect the Group's financial performance. The
Group historically has not entered into any commodity
derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity
price changes. The Group monitors its commodity price
risk by widening its supply base and performs bulk
purchase when the price of raw materials is low.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair values

0}

(i)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include loans and receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits, trade payables and other payables,
debentures and bank loans.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, pledged deposits, trade payables and
other payables, debentures and bank loans
approximates fair value.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technigue as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

32. sRIABEERAFE®)

()

AF(E

() REBEAPEFAENEHMIA

AEATEASEHSHIAS
BERRERFE Re kR

P2y

=5
I8 -
JFEHROE -

BY - B35 REMEEK
EEAER BHREM
EHRRITER -

ERNEEHNE  Rekie
A

I8
FEA SRR -

W E 5 R E A YR
BEEATER BHREM
BEFERITERZ

FREEREQFERS -

(il EAVEIRNWEMIA
RFEERHE
TREJAEES BT AR
= I A R A I R M B
ENATE XHBEA/TEY
B EERE 135 - A F(EE

=
==N=)

BEN=MRITERE &

RHEFEDBNER IS
TN ETDEN R ABUE
WATEIREM R ERMERET

£ A R
— R AR (R 2
A REEER A ERE
B 2 A H R E)
SHEMATE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

C UAABRHEZTR)

32. cRAREER AT E®E)

N 2DFE@®
(i) BAPEIENSRMIL(E)

RFEERHE (&)

o FEAME:ERE-_MK
AR (BIREEES
— A B R ABE)
BRI AREAERTAEE
BABUBFTEMNQFE -
THERBABERET
SEBNEARE

« E=REE: RREA
FABRMETEHA
¥

31 December 2018

—Z-\F+ZA=+—H
Level 2 Level 3 Total
-t B=8 #Et
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AR®TR AR%TRT

Level 1
F—#&
RMB'000
AR®TR

Financial assets at fair value BATEFAERZZ R
through profit or loss BE
— Derivative financial —TEE@IA
instruments (note 19) (HizE19) - 2,736 - 2,736
Financial assets at fair value BATEFARMER
through other WM S REE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity securities — JEETRANES
(note 15) (HtiE15) > - 3,267 3,267
- 2,736 3,267 6,003
Financial liabilities at fair value B AFEALBRZEH
through profit or loss BE
— Derivative financial —TEEmIA
instruments (note 22) (HizE22) - 2,546 - 2,546
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5R 4

C UABEHEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEBREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(i)

() Fair values (continued) H 2FE®
Financial instruments measured at fair value BATFEIENESBRIA(E)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NTEZREIEZ (&)
31 December 2017
“T—+F+=-A=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 Rt 41 F= BET
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial liabilities at fair value R AT EABEZZ S/
through profit or loss BfE
— Derivative financial —fTEeRITA
instruments (note 22) (Mi722) - 12,307 - -
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and HEZ-N\FR-ZT—+F

2017, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

As at 31 December 2018 the Group’s derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities
amounting to RMB2,736,000 and RMB2,546,000
respectively (2017: assets and liabilities of RMBNIil
and RMB12,307,000 respectively) (notes 19 and 22)
were carried at fair value, and these instruments
fall into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy described
above.

TZA=+—HLFE F—
MEAF_HTABYEEE
MEEAE=RXEE=RE
He AEBHNBEASRATE
F ) B AR IR I A RS
BLBBHRIAEHEE -

FoRAFEFEEFNGE
BN ¢
RZE—NF+ZA=+—
H AEEMTESRTASR
ERBESNAARE
2,736,000 7t }2 A R # 2,546,000
T(ZZ—tF  EEREED
AMEBEARBZETRARE
12,307,000 7T ) (Mf7E 19 &% 22) #&
NEEHNE ZETABR E
M RAFEER -

RN ERERAT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements (Continued)

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the
end of reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The fair value of the Group’s unlisted equity
securities at 31 December 2018 and 2017 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited, a firm of
independent professionally qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The unlisted equity
securities are categorised into level 3 of fair value
measurement.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. sriEMEER AFE#®)
VALUES (continued)
(f)  Fair values (continued) H 2¥FE@
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BRAFEIENESMIAE)
(Continued)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair E=RNFEFEEHAEE
value measurements (Continued) B R A B (48)
Fair value Relationship
Financial assets at fair value at 31 December Valuation Unobservable of inputs to
through other comprehensive income 2018 technique input Range fairvalue
AZE-I\E
+ZB=t+-A
BOFERAERZERRHEMEE WATE fHERE FURREARE 8 BARBEOTENER
RMB'000
ARETT
— Unlisted equity securities 3267 Market comparable  Discount for lack 30%  The higher the discount the
—EMRAES companies of marketability lower the fair value
TEAL AT R mERAEE adE  ATERE

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are
determined using the price/book ratios of
comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. The directors are of the view that the
impact of the fair value measurement to changes in
unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs to a
different amount was insignificant.

FLEMBRAESFHORFETR
R EBRZ 5 m @t m
BRI A LR ET AR MR
REE - AFEFEERZT
BRBEEZBEE -EF
RRHEZEHABBEEEST
R AAFEFEETA
BRG ABUBEENTEEN -

RN ERERAT
—E\EEH
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued) ()
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements (Continued)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at

fair value based on significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) are as follows:

NFE (&)

(i)

BAVEFIRNESRIA(E)

B TEAERANLE
Rl RBA B ()
ERNBRTNABRBAZRERS
=R)BEAFEIENERT
EMERIT

Financial assets at FVYOCI
(2018)/Available-for-sale
financial assets, at cost (2017)
BRATFEMAAREMZERAZ &R
HE(ZE—I\F) HEEFHH
AHHESRMEE(ZE—tF)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Unlisted equity securities: I EMRAES
Restated at 1 January/At 1 January A—RB—B&E%],/ H—A—H 4,075 2,495
Total gains or losses: Uk s Bk B 1 4 5E
— in other comprehensive income — R E fth 2 T iz (808) -
At 31 December A+-—A=+—H 3,267 2,495
There were no other financial assets or liabilities HW=—ZE—-—N\F+=-A=+—8H
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2018 and 31 ;MZE—tF+ZA=+—
December 2017. B WERAFEIENEM
CRIEENEE -

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (iii) RROTFEIENESHEER
not carried at fair value BENAFE
The carrying values of the Group’s financial IR ER B 92 B AN S B BH B AR B BR
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are MemTAREEARSER

not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
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33. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 33. REEEUBHMRREK
FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E-N\f§ e
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
HaF AR®TT ARBTT
Non-current assets FERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries  RMEAEOREE 6 707,307 712,674
Current assets B E
Deposits and other prepayments e REAMTE R 373 439
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE S BT B8 A B R IE 1,729 33
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 323 1,496
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 2425 1968
Current liabilities wHAE
Other payables H b e R 1,400 1,781
Debentures & 2% . .
1,400 1,781
Netcurrentassets =~~~ =bw&$E = 00 . 187
Total assets less current assets HERERTDHEE 708,332 712,861
Non-current liabilities FERBAR
Debentures [=¢:) 26 17,620 16,790
NET ASSETS BEERE 690,712 696,071
Equity Ba 27(a)
Share capital B 25,544 25,544
Reserves (B 665,168 670,527
TOTAL EQUITY Eoun 690,712 696,071
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZT—NF=ZAZThBAEEFSHE
29 March 2019. R -
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REBE HiEx
Chief Executive Officer Chairlady
7T AB E3
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B % G551

34.

35.

A BT IR M s

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Green Seas
Capital Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does
not produce financial statement available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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34. HERRRERT

35.

EERA R N\F+=ZA=+—8"
NEEEHE R &KER T AGreen Seas
Capital Limited * Z A BIREBE LB ST
AL - W E B EARR AR ISHRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R A S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS B 1E 5 O S 1 ok 4 s
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ST . 37T B B 22 RR Ay T 45 5
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (continued) &)

5. B2 E—N\FE+ZHA=1+—

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTIBERRARNZE
BERAREN

Amendments to IFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation
BB 53Rk S 2RI EE 957 2 85T - i 75 B E (8 A 1R AT A8 SRR

1 January 2019
—NF—HA—H

Amendments to IAS 19, Plan amendment curtailment or settlement
BB 2R ERIE 1950 2185] « sHEHESE] ~ HaRis&ss

1 January 2019
—NF—HA—H

Amendments to IAS 28, Long term interests in associates and joint ventures
IR &t RIE 285 2 18R] - ML AR RAEREPHRPER

1 January 2019
—hF—H—H

IFRS 16, Leases
B M B IREERE 165 HE

1 January 2019
—NF—HA—H

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments
B EREEARELZ ESE 235 MISHEENTREEE

1 January 2019
—NF—HA—H

Annual improvements — 2015-2017 Cycle, Annual improvements project
TE-RFETFEBCFELE - FESGEIER

1 January 2019
—NF—HA—H

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a business 1 January 2020
BB SR SR E 3R 2 I8R]  EBFZTEE —E-FTF—H—H

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
BB R ERIE 195 KB &5 ERE 85k 2 185]

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts
B A mEERE 175 RREA

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
BRI mELNRELE@FE 235 @ ASTHERATHEEE

IFRS 16, Leases
BIFR M B IREERE165%  HE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BIFR B F5 ek S 2RI 1055 R BIR & 5T LRI 2857 2 185] - IREE R A&
RENAEETEBNEENEIRA

1 January 2020

—ZE-TF¥—H—H

1 January 2021
—%—HA—H

1 January 2019
—NF—HA—H

1 January 2019
—NF—HA—H

To be determined*

fFiE *

TRAEMERERAT | 221

ZE-N\FFER



222

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

AU THREM T

35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede IAS 17
“Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
IFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in
the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and
the lease liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, IAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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35.

AU THREM T

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (continued)

IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of 1AS 12, Income
Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes. Under the
Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to consider
each uncertain tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then the
uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected using either
the “most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to IFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income if specified
conditions are met — instead of at fair value through profit or
loss.

C UABEHEZTR)
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A BISREN FE

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to IFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to IFRS 3
which clarifies that when a joint operator of a business obtains
control over a joint operation, this is a business combination
achieved in stages and the previously held equity interest
should therefore be remeasured to its acquisition date fair
value.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to IAS 12
which clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends are
recognised consistently with the transactions that generated
the distributable profits, either in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The Group has not applied the new and revised IFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised IFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised IFRSs would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.
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